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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEER
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of China Shenghai Food
Holdings Company LimiteddP B A SR RIERER QA (the
“Company” or “Shenghai Food”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”), | report to shareholders our annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year 2018" or the “Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2018, China’s economy remained stable. GDP growth for the
year grew by 6.6% as compared to the last year, and per capita
disposable income of national residents achieved a real growth
of 6.5% as compared to the last year, which was higher than the
growth of per capita GDP and was basically in line with economic
growth. China’s overall economy kept optimizing, and residents
tended to spend on higher quality goods. The fast and stable
economic development of China helped the successful listing of
the Group on the Main Board in Hong Kong in 2017. As one of
the well-known brand of seafood producers in China, the Group
is committed to producing consumer food with rigid demand for
healthy diets, and focusing on the establishment of brand profile
and sales channels.

The Group embraces wide and diverse product offerings, and
mainly sells dried seafood, algae and fungi, seafood snacks and
frozen seafood in the PRC. As a review to 2018, the Group’s
revenue grew approximately by 3.7% from approximately
RMB644.4 million for the year, ended 31 December 2017 (the
“Same Period Last Year"”) to approximately RMB668.0 million
for the period, and gross profit increased by approximately 3.4%
from RMB163.5 million to RMB169.1 million for the Period. The
overall sales remained stable, in which the growth in sales of
algae products and seafood snacks products was more significant.
Dried seafood, which the largest product category in terms of
sales, recorded sales revenue of RMB335.3 million in 2018,
accounting for 50.2% of total revenue. In terms of sales channels,
supermarket is still the Group's largest revenue resource.
Meanwhile, we adjusted our strategies in a timely way based
on actual sales performance and we ceased the frozen seafood
business with lower sales in the first half of 2018.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERES

OUTLOOK

In the past 12 years, Shenghai Food enjoyed rapid growth
accompanying with China's economy. The improvement of
social security system, the increase in household income and
purchase power of residents, as well as the greater acceptance
towards nutritive value of seafood drove the growth of seafood
and algae market. However, individual consumer confidence was
affected by trade dispute between the United States and China
resulting in slowdown of manufacturing and exporting industries,
as well as by the depressed stock market and real estate market
in China. Since seafood and algae are consumer discretionary,
their demands are expected to decrease significantly. The status
of listing and sufficient cash flows of the Company lay a solid
foundation for Shenghai to pursue growth. From the prospective
of China's economic structure, China encourages credit easing to
help enterprises to go through transition. As such, the Group has
commenced to study the feasibility of stepping into the financial
market, and will spare no effort to gain momentum of growth for
the Group through proactively pursuing merger and acquisitions
opportunities by making the best of the financial strength of the
Company.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my most sincere
gratitude to all the staff who have shown innovation and utmost
diligence and dedication in their duties. | would also like to extend
my gratitude to our shareholders, investors, long-term customers
and suppliers for their continual devotion and consistent support.
We will continue to adhere to our initial vision and uphold the
pragmatic operation and positive approach to achieve development
and actual results to reward the trust from all of you.

China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited
Liu Rongru

Chairman and Executive Director

Xiamen, the PRC, 22 March 2019
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Rongru (21288%0) (“Mr. Liu"), aged 51, is our Executive
Director and the chairman of our Board and is primarily responsible
for development, positioning and strategy planning of our Group.
Mr. Liu is the founder of our Group. He was appointed as a Director
on 8 January 2016 and redesignated as an Executive Director on
11 April 2016. He is currently a director of all subsidiaries of our
Group. He is also a member of our Remuneration Committee and
the chairman of our Nomination Committee.

In the earlier period of his career, Mr. Liu worked at Xiamen
Shipping Trading Limited (EF&BMIEHFRAF]) in China from
August 1990 to August 1996, a company principally engaged in
shipping and trading, where he was primarily responsible for ship
steering and piloting. In October 1996, Mr. Liu started his own
business in trading marine product where he was primarily in
charge of the general operation of the business which allowed
him to input his trading experience into Xiamen Wofan upon its
establishment in July 2005.

Mr. Liu attended a course entitled “Contemporary CEOs’ Advance
Course (BRMEATKZRIHEI)" from October 2010 to October
2011 at the School of Continuing Education, Tsinghua University
(BEABUEEHE ZP). Mr. Liu has been appointed a member
of the 7th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
at Xiamen Huli district (EFIM#AEREELEBRIHBZ E) since
November 2011 and a member of the China Democratic National
Construction Association (FEIRFZHEE8) since November
2010. Mr. Liu had also been appointed the first vice president of
the Association for New Social Stratum of Xiamen Huli district
(EfffEeg RSt eREALEEEZE 2R) in December
2009, the executive committee of the 12th Xiamen Federation of
Commerce of Chamber (EFITT TR (BRE) B+ _EREZSH
Z) in December 2011, the standing committee member of the 5th
Xiamen Huli district Federation of Commerce of Chamber (EF9H
MERTIEE (Bg) BLEEBEEEHES) in April 2012 and the
supervisor of the third division of the Xiamen Municipal Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision (EFIHEERMEERE=2R
TREEE) in April 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEERE

Mr. Jiang Dehua (J§/2%) (“Mr. Jiang”), aged 41, is our Executive
Director and the chief executive officer of our Group. He was
appointed as an Executive Director on 11 April 2016. He is primarily
responsible for business development, marketing strategy, sales
management and strategic planning of our Group. Mr. Jiang joined
our Group in October 2010 and was appointed as the assistant to
the chairman and the deputy general manager of Xiamen Wofan in
October 2010.

Mr. Jiang has spent over 10 years in the media and advertising
industry and has extensive experience in managing business
operations. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Jiang was employed by
the Shanghai branch of the Guangzhou Bates Advertising Company
Ltd. (BMNERT CGEE) BEBRAF LSS AR as an assistant
director of strategic planning primarily responsible for developing
marketing strategies for various car models from July 1999 to
August 2003. Mr. Jiang was then employed by the New Handsome
Joint Advertising Company Ltd. ({8 Z¥EEESHBR A R) as the
director of strategic planning from January 2004 to September
2010.

Mr. Chak Chi Shing (ZE/) (“Mr. Chak”), aged 38, was
appointed as our Executive Director on 5 December 2018. Mr.
Chak obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance from
Curtin University of Technology in Australia. Mr. Chak has over 10
years of professional experience in auditing, accounting, corporate
finance and financial management and also has substantial years
of experience in company secretarial and corporate governance
practices. Prior to joining of the Company, Mr. Chak served as the
company secretary of Bolina Holdings Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1190)
from March 2017 to August 2018, and the company secretary of
SDM Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8363) from March 2016
to July 2016. Mr. Chak is a member of CPA Australia and Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Xingluan (E#%) (“Mr. Huang”), aged 44, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 22 June
2017. Mr. Huang is also a member of our Audit Committee, our
Remuneration Committee and our Nomination Committee. Mr.
Huang graduated from the Xiamen University with a Master degree
in Management in June 2001 and a doctoral degree in Finance in
June 2009. Subsequent to his obtaining of the master degree, Mr.
Huang was employed by the Xiamen University as an assistant
professor of business management in August 2001, where he was
later promoted as an associate professor of business management
in August 2009. Since March 2013, Mr. Huang has served as
the associate director of the Faculty of Financial Management at
the School of Management of Xiamen University. Mr. Huang is
currently an independent non-executive director of Fujian Longma
Environmental Sanitation Equipment Co., Ltd ({85 BIREEER
38R A7), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: SHA: 603686); China United Travel Co., Ltd (EBIjRESS M 1D
BBR/A7]), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: SHA: 600358) and Xiamen Kingdomway Group Company
Limited (EFI&ZREBRMDBR AR, which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: SZSE: 002626).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERENEEERE

Mr. Liu Dajin (2X3), aged 53, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 22 June 2017. Mr. Liu Dajin is also a
member of our Audit Committee, our Remuneration Committee
and our Nomination Committee. Mr. Liu Dajin has been a practising
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since November 1996. Mr. Liu Dajin graduated with a bachelor
degree in economics (major in accounting) from the Central
University of Finance and Economics (FFREI4E KX E2) (originally
named Central Institute of Finance and Banking (FFRET B & R 22
B)) in June 1989. He then obtained a postgraduate qualification
from the Xiamen University Postgraduate School in September
1992. Mr. Liu Dajin worked as a teaching assistant at the Jimei
Finance and Economics School ((£ZEB#E &4 (currently known
as: Finance & Economics Institute, Jimei University 53 K284
ZEBT)) from August 1984 to August 1987. Mr. Liu Dajin then
served as the deputy director and an instructor at the Financial
Management Teaching and Research Centre (M EBRHIAE) at
the Jimei College of Finance (X8 B EFRIER (currently known
as: Finance & Economics Institute, Jimei University &3 K 281 58 &2
Bt)) from July 1989 to August 1995. Mr. Liu Dajin worked in various
faculties of the Jimei University (5822 KX2) since September 1995
and is currently the professor of the Faculty of Management of the
Chengyi University College, Jimei University (53 KE % £07).
Mr. Liu Dajin has been an independent non-executive Director of
Mobile Internet (China) Holdings Limited (formerly known as China
Packaging Holdings Development Limited), which is listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1439) since December 2013.

Ms. Cheng Shing Yan (¥/#%f%) (“Ms. Cheng”), aged 44, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 22 June
2017. She is also the chairlady of our Audit Committee. Ms.
Cheng has around 20 years of working experience in auditing and
accounting.

She joined the group of Zhaobangji Properties Holdings Limited
(forming known as Sanroc International Holdings Limited), which
is listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1660), as the chief
financial officer since April 2016 and has been appointed as
company secretary from April 2016 to April 2018 and executive
director from April 2017 to April 2018. Ms. Cheng has also been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Putian
Communication Group Limited (stock code: 1720) since October
2017, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Cheng obtained a master degree in international accounting
at the City University of Hong Kong in November 2003. Ms.
Cheng was admitted as a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA) and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) in December 2000 and
July 2003 respectively. Ms. Cheng has also been admitted as an
associate of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
(the "HKICS") and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators (the “ICSA”) in June 2017. Ms. Cheng is currently a
member of ACCA, HKICPA, HKICS and ICSA.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Zhengping (£|I§), aged 48, is the chief procurement
officer of our Group and is primarily responsible for developing
strategic plans and overall management of our Group's
procurement. Mr. Liu Zhengping joined our Group as the manager
for procurement department in August 2009.

In the earlier period of his career, Mr. Liu Zhengping was employed
as the chief sailor in the U-Ming Marine Transport (Singapore) Pte
Ltd. (HMEME () LABRAE) from May 2006 to July
2009. Mr. Liu Zhengping completed a 2-year course in ship piloting
at the Fujian Huian Sailing School (B2 & 2L G =M EHES
R (currently known as fBEEE RM T RB AT ZHEKEBRESN)
in July 1988 and completed a short course in ship piloting at the
Guangzhou Mariner School (&8 247) in July 1994,

Mr. Lin Yiyang (#z5F5), aged 31, is the chief sales officer of our
Group and is primarily responsible for developing strategic plans
and overall management of our Group’'s sales. Mr. Lin joined our
Group in 2010 and he was responsible for business development
and customer management for the Group’s market in Southern
China. He has been working with the Group for 8 years and has
extensive experience in marketing and customer relations.

Mr. Liu Qingsen (2/)5%%), aged 48, is the head of production of our
Group and is primarily responsible for developing strategic plans
and overall management of our Group's production. Mr. Liu joined
our Group as the team leader of production department in August
2011.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Liu worked for COSCO Shipping
(Hong Kong) Co. Limited of the COSCO Group and the Beijing
Branch of China Shipping Group as sailor from August 1989 to July
2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEERE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Wai Lun (5/Z1&), aged 35, joined our Company in
March 2016 as the chief financial officer. He was appointed as the
Company Secretary on 11 April 2016. Mr. Wong Wai Lun obtained a
bachelor degree of commerce from the University of Queensland in
December 2004. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and has over 14 years of experience
in the field of accounting, auditing, corporate finance, financial
management and corporate governance. Mr. Wong Wai Lun had
been the financial controller and the company secretary of China
Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Ltd. (formerly
known as Merry Garden Holdings Limited), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1237) from January 2014 to October
2015, and the joint company secretary of the same company from
October 2015 to January 2016. Prior to this, he worked at KPMG
from September 2008 to December 2013 with the last position
as a manager. He also worked at Poon & Co. Certified Public
Accountants from February 2005 to March 2007 and from May
2007 to June 2008 with the last position as a senior auditor.

PREFABRMIZERER QA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED N

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is
pleased to announce the audited consolidated annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (“Year 2018" or the “Reporting
Year"”), together with the comparative figures for the corresponding
period in 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

According to the statistics released by the National Bureau of
Statistics, the annual GDP in 2018 increased by 6.6% as compared
to that in last year. With the steady growth of the economy and
the growing consumption power of residents, the upgrade of
consumption promoted the rapid growth of the food industry. As
one of the well-known branded seafood companies in China, the
Group (i) sources high quality raw and processed raw materials,
(ii) subcontracts processing of the unprocessed raw materials to
third parties, (iii) packages products at its own packaging facilities
or through sub-contractors, and (iv) sells packaged products under
its own brand “Wofan (KZ)". The Group also sells dried seafood,
algae and fungi without packaging.

During the Reporting Year, the Group's revenue was approximately
RMB668.0 million, an increase of approximately 3.7% as compared
to the corresponding period of last year of approximately
RMB644.4 million. During the Reporting Year, the Group’s gross
profit and gross profit margin were approximately RMB169.1
million and approximately 25.3%, respectively (approximately
RMB163.5 million and approximately 25.4% respectively for the
corresponding period of last year).

The Group has a large and broad variety of products, offering 198
products in total, which comprised 101 dried seafood, 33 algae
and fungi, and 64 seafood snacks. The Group sold dried seafood,
algae and fungi, and seafood snacks in China. The sales of each
product were steady during the Reporting Year. The sales volume
of frozen products was few and the Group did not renewed the
tenancy agreement of the point of sale of frozen products. The
operation of the relevant segments was terminated during the
Reporting Year. During the Reporting Year, dried seafood was still
the largest product category of the Group, accounting for 50.2%
of the Group’'s revenue, which approximated to 50.2% for the
corresponding period of last year.

The Group has established complete sales channels during
its course of development. The Company’s products are sold
through supermarkets, trading companies, convenience stores
and other sales channels, such as food companies, gift stores
and e-commerce retailers. Supermarkets remain to be the largest
income source of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED N

During the Reporting Year, the revenue growth was mainly due to
the increase of sales volume as a result of the increasing customer
demands. In addition, the selling price per unit increased as the
Group has established its brand successfully. The Group believes
that customers choose the Group’s products mainly attributable
to (i) a large volume of supplies of quality raw material and an
experienced sales and promotion team as we have 62 suppliers and
372 sales personnel as at of 31 December 2018, and (ii) the fact
that the Group has a wide range of product portfolio and excellent
product research and development teams.

In the future’'s, the Group will (i) strengthen its existing customer
relationships in the existing and new markets, launch new products
to cater for consumer demands and extend its further efforts to
put forward promotion and marketing measures on Tmall and in the
Central Western China; and (ii) enhance its packaging capabilities to
improve the existing package and design packages that satisfy the
requirements of the public. Meanwhile the Group will cooperate
with Jimei University to promote the formation of the research
and development teams. Furthermore, in order to give new growth
drivers, the Company is in the process of studying the possibility of
stepping into the financial market by leveraging on its listing status
and healthy financial position.

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

During the Reporting Year, the Group's revenue grew by
approximately 3.7% from approximately RMB644.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB668.0 million
for the Reporting Year. The Group has a large and broad variety of
products and extensive sales channels. During the Reporting Year,
dried seafood is still the largest product category of the Group and
supermarkets remain to be the largest income source of the Group.
The increase of the revenue was primarily due to (i) the increase in
sales volume resulting from the increase of customer demands, (ii)
the increase in selling price per unit due to the establishment of its
own brand “Wofan (KZ)".

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group's revenue
categorized by product types during the Reporting Year:

RBEFR  WENEINEBEHABRFERE
RIIZAN - EEEHE SN - M2 - NEBRHE
MKIHEY - HEBEEARS - AEEREA
ERPEEALSEERNEREZZEEAREETE
MEEMEMEMLERBSHECREFTHHEE
UREEEN  HSIt—T—N\E+-_A=+—
B BMEEE2HHEFMMI72ZHEEA
8 RiNVAEEBRELENEREAARES
K SR 2 B Bx o

ARBRS - AEER()INRBE LFHHH
RARFPBE HLHERDE TP HLRAR
SRR S E - #E— T HEE R N B 7R Af
MWEH RN EHER - Ri)AEESRSE
Keh  mB2RAREK  RFTHLEMFTAAR
EXMRMBE - HRK - BaEEARENM
EIMEBEBAER - R RENERE S
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R 21 & B A B 3R
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RBEFER  KEBREHREEZE T —+F
+ZA=+—BHI+ZAAMHARKG44.4
BETEMAI T EREFANHARE
668.0EETT - AEEHERAMEENER
BEMEENHEERE  RBEFA  8E
mINARAEERANEREE  BHHAR
REEZAKNBARR - WS mEB AN
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(VBB R KL IMKRINEY - EEiEEE
BEARES -

TR MR 85 4 P SR B QB R 5 0
eas -

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1t—HLHFE

% to total % to total
revenue revenue
2018 {4 2017 1H#RUE=R]
—E-N\F Bokk —E—+% Bkt
RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)

AR¥ T ARET T
Dried seafood B8EMR 335,311 50.2% 327,875 50.9%
Algae and fungi BRHEELNMEBEES 275,506 41.2% 257,199 39.9%
Seafood Snacks KEE M 57,141 8.6% 52,471 8.1%
Frozen products R - - 6,862 1.1%
Total A=t 667,958 100% 644,407 100%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED N

The table below sets forth the revenue contribution from the TF&REFIAEFEMEEEBHNREERNTI Y
Group's sales channels during the Reporting Year: =

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-HLFE

% to total % to total
revenue revenue
2018 fhH#AUERH 2017 1N E=ER
—E-N\F Aok —ZT—+F Bt
RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
AR¥T ARET T
Supermarkets Bm 354,662 53.1% 335,883 52.1%
Trading companies = VNG 156,538 23.4% 141,615 22.0%
Convenience stores EFE 30,987 4.6% 31,302 4.9%
Wholesale market for seafood BEMETS - - 6,862 1.0%
Others Hith 125,771 18.9% 128,745 20.0%
Food companies R oA A 44,212 6.6% 49,760 7.7%
Gift stores B 39,459 5.9% 34,688 5.4%
E-commerce B 37,630 5.6% 37,675 5.8%
Others Hib 3,909 0.6% 6,622 1.1%
Self-operated website EREEN 561 0.1% = =
Total Ty 667,958 644,407
GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN ENRERNZE

Gross profit represents our revenue less our cost of sales, and  FEFFEWZZHEEMA - EFRI5FEFIBR AU
our gross profit margin represents gross profit divided by revenue, % © ABE D IR o TREIINREFRIRE
expressed as a percentage. The following table sets forth the gross  FAERIZI D EVEFR R EH = -

profit and gross profit margin by product category for the Reporting

Year:
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
profit margin profit margin
EF EFE EF ETES
RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
ARET T ARBFIT
Dried seafood B BEM 84,798 25.3% 82,390 25.1%
Algae and fungi SEEMMNEEES 71,041 25.8% 66,683 25.9%
Seafood Snacks NG 13,255 23.2% 12,908 24.6%
Frozen products R - - 1,525 22.3%
Total Bzt 169,094 25.3% 163,506 25.4%

The Group's gross profit margin was approximately 25.3% ZANEENEMNERAHREENREFERED R A
and approximately 25.4% for the Reporting Year and for the  #J25.3% & 4925.4% £ F|& S &8 E R
corresponding period of last year respectively. The sales of algae HEFANHHEEE - BPEIFENX -
products with higher gross profit were higher during the Reporting

Year, which helped maintaining the gross profit margin.

PEAERMERARAR | ZE—/\FERS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED N

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

Other income represents rental income generated from the
seaweed farms located in Xiapu, the PRC and interest income from
bank deposits and secured loan receivable.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of salaries and
employee benefit expenses for employees engaging in the sales
and promotion activities, transportation expenses, advertising
and promotion expenses, rental expenses and other expenses.
As a percentage of revenue, our selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately 8.2% and approximately 3.7% for
the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, respectively. This
increase was primarily due to the Group's efforts on promotion and
advertising on the products in new markets.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of salaries and
employees benefit expenses, rental expenses, office expenses,
depreciation and others. As the Company had no listing expenses
incurred in 2018, as a percentage of revenue, our administrative
expenses significantly reduced from approximately 5.4% for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately 1.7% for the
Reporting Year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense primarily consists of Enterprise Income Tax
of Xiamen Wofan and Fujian Wofan, the applicable tax rate of
which being 25%. For the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2017, income tax expense were approximately RMB28.0 million
and RMB34.2 million, respectively. As the Group had no listing
expenses incurred (which are non-deductible) during the Reporting
Year, the effective tax rates reduced to approximately 26.8% for
the year ended 2018 (for the corresponding period of last year:
32.7%).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), we are not subject to any income

tax in the Cayman Islands or the BVI.

Hong Kong profits tax at has not been provided as the Group had no
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED N

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

CASH FLOWS

During the Reporting Year, the Group funded its working capital and
other capital requirements principally by cash generated from our
operating activities and the net proceeds from initial public offering.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Net current assets increased from approximately RMB364.7 million
as at 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB371.1 million as at
31 December 2018. The increase was primarily attributable to an
increase in inventories and decrease in trade payables.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AND BANK BORROWINGS
During the Reporting Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position. As at 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents of
the Group was approximately RMB234.3 million, as compared to
approximately RMB285.2 million as at 31 December 2017 and the
Group has no bank borrowings.

GEARING RATIO
As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio (calculated by total debt
divided by the total equity as at the end of the year) remained nil.

INVENTORIES
As at 31 December 2018, inventories amounted to approximately
RMB70.3 million (2017: approximately RMB41.6 million). The
number of inventory turnover days was approximately 41 days
(2017: 28 days).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables amounted to
approximately RMB110.0 million (2017: approximately RMB97.9
million). The Group granted its customers a credit period of 30 to 90
days following the day of delivery. The number of turnover days for
trade receivables was approximately 57 days (2017: approximately
45 days).

TRADE PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2018, trade payables amounted to
approximately RMB39.9 million (2017: approximately RMB61.1
million). The Group managed to obtain a credit period of an average
of approximately 30 days from the majority of its suppliers. The
turnover day for trade payables was approximately 37 days (2017:
approximately 35 days).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED N

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had capital
expenditure of approximately RMB37.1 million (Year ended 31
December 2017: approximately RMB35,000). The expenditure was
mainly related to the purchase of product testing equipment and
packaging equipment.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Save as disclosed in note 30 to the annual report, the Group did not
have any material capital commitments as at 31 December 2018.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not pledge any assets.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 18 July 2017 with net proceeds from the
global offering of approximately HK$123.3 million (after deduction
of underwriting fees and commissions and expenses paid in
connection with the global offering). According to the intended use
as set out in “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus
published on 30 June 2017 (the “Prospectus”), the amount utilized

BARBEX
RBE_Z—-N\E+_A=+—HLFE K
EENERARASTBHOAREIINEET  (HE
TE—HEF A=+ —HILEE  HYARE
35,0007T) ° B = ERKEERBBBRERE
HREEH -

BARAYE
BrRF MM E0MWMBEEIN R_F—\F
TZA=1+—H0 AREAUEBERNEAHAIE -
HREE

RZZE-—NF+A=+—0  XEEHEE
MEAHREE -

BEEEA
RZZ—NF+_A=+—0  AEEHEL
M EEEM

BEXRARABEMGSHEFEAR

ARRBENR T —tF A+ N\BEBRAR
ERED  REZHRBEEMESRBFRORD
123 3B BT (HBARFEZREED I
BHEBEREMBERAX) - RE-_ZF—LFX
A=TH#MHBRER(THRERDA K
Ker8I MPASRIBERE IFFEMBRERE  »©
—E-NAFEt+A=t—BMCHRTEN

as at 31 December 2018 was as follows: T
Net proceeds (HK$ million)
FEREFHE(EERT)
Percentage Available Utilised Unutilised
Aok A A 2 &8 A RENA
Enhance the market access and g miS A KR
deepening the penetration of 2 R B EE &
Northern China and Central AR P 2R &
Western China 36.3% 44.8 34.3 10.5
Acquire new packaging equipment BB R &
and establishing the quality B EEEEI R
control and testing centre Rl O 29.1% 35.9 35.9 -
Diversify and increase the sales BARMEEE &
and promotion efforts HENEIE 24.6% 30.3 19.6 10.7
General working capital —REEES 10.0% 12.3 12.3 =

The Company has no intention to use the proceeds contrary to the
description as stated in the Prospectus.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED N

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

There was no significant investment, material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries by the Company during the Reporting
Year. The Group currently has no plan to make any substantial
investment in or acquisition of capital assets, but will continue to
seek for potential investment or acquisition opportunities according
to the Group's development needs.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operating
transactions are settled in RMB. Most of its assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB. Although the Group may be exposed
to foreign currency exchange risks, the Board does not expect
future currency fluctuations to materially impact the Group's
operations. The Group did not adopt formal hedging policies and
no instruments have been applied for foreign currency hedging
purposes during the Reporting Period.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 645 full time employees
in total (31 December 2017: 466). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice. Competitive remuneration package is offered
to retain elite employees. The package includes salaries, medical
insurance, discretionary bonuses, other benefits as well as
mandatory provident fund schemes for employees in Hong Kong
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in
the PRC.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to the shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEE®RE

The Directors is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's turnover and results by business
segments for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in note
6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESULT AND APPROPRIATION

The Group's financial information for the year ended 31 December
2018 and the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018 are set out in the consolidated financial statements from
pages 51 to 127.

No dividend has been declared or proposed by the Directors in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business, financial key performance indicators and
outlook of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 4 to 5 and pages 11 to 17 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

It is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental friendly environment. We strive
to minimise our environmental impact by saving electricity and to
build our Group in a sustainable way.

We have adopted a set of emergency planning, response
and control procedures as countermeasures for unexpected
environmental pollution accidents to minimise our impact on the
environment and the adverse effect on our business.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy"),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s profits and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.
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The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of
final dividend will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group's financial results, the general
financial condition of the Group, the Group's current and future
operations, the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return
on equity and the relevant financial covenants, liquidity position
and capital requirement of the Group, surplus received from the
Company’'s subsidiaries and any other factors that the Board
deem appropriate. The Company’s ability to pay dividends is
also subject to the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and all relevant applicable laws,
rules and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company does not have any pre-determined distribution ratio. The
Group's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as
a reference or basis to determine the amount of dividends that may
be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or
in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by our Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of our Group.
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PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to the operational risk in relation to the
business of the Group. With the growth and expansion of our
operations, the potential risks to our business increase as
well. In order to identify, assess and control the risks that may
create impediments to our success, we have implemented a
risk management system that covers each material aspect of
our operations, including financial security, production, logistics,
technology and compliance. As our risk management is a
systematic project, each of our departments is responsible for
identifying and evaluating the risks relating to its area of operations.
Our Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing, assessing
and reviewing our risk management policy and supervising the
performance of our risk management system.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

EMPLOYEES

The Company recognizes that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus our Group provide competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. Our Group regularly reviews
the remuneration package of employees and make necessary
adjustment to conform to the market standard.

SUPPLIERS

We have developed long-standing relationships with a number of
our suppliers and conducts a fair and strict appraisal on an annual
basis.

CUSTOMERS

We are committed to provide our customers with high quality
products and deliver on a timely basis. We also stay connected
with our customers to keep abreast of the changing customer
preference through regular visits of our sales teams.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
on page 51.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 128 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 25 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity on page 53 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Company's
articles of association (the "Articles of Association”), amounted
to approximately RMB96.0 million (as at 31 December 2017:
approximately RMB98.3 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's largest and five largest customers accounted
for approximately 8.1% and 31.6% of the total turnover for the year
2018 respectively. Purchases from the Group’s largest and five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 23.4% and 63.1% of
the total purchases for the year 2018 respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in any
of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 18 July 2017. The net proceeds from the
listing were approximately HK$123.3 million (after deduction of
underwriting fees and commissions and estimated expenses
payable by the Company in connection with the global offering).

For details, please refer to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Use of Net Proceeds from Initial Public
Offering” on page 16 of this annual report.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group did not made charitable contributions
(2017: Nil).
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS
The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year and
up to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Rongru (Chairman)
Mr. Jiang Dehua
Mr. Lin Jiangtang
(resigned on 15 June 2018)
Mr. Cao Hongyu
(appointed on 15 June 2018 and resigned on 5 December 2018)
Mr. Chak Chi Shing
(appointed on 5 December 2018)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Dajin

Mr. Huang Xingluan

Ms. Cheng Shing Yan

In accordance with articles 83(3) and 84(1) and (2) of the
Company’s articles of association, Mr. Chak Chi Shing, Mr. Huang
Xingluan and Ms. Cheng Shing Yan will retire at the annual general
meeting ("AGM"). Mr. Chak Chi Shing, Mr. Huang Xingluan and
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the AGM, has a service agreement which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received confirmation on independence from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results
of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in Note 12
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are disclosed in the section headed "“Biographical Details
of the Directors and Senior Management” on pages 6 to 10 of this
annual report.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The controlling shareholders of the Company entered into a
Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company dated 22
June 2017 (“"Deed of Non-Competition”) as set out in the section
of “Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders” under
the Prospectus. The controlling shareholders confirmed their
compliance of all the undertakings provided under the Deed of
Non-Competition.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies by
the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on 22
June 2017, the Company has conditionally adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of recognizing and acknowledging the contributions the eligible
participants had or may have made to the Group. The Board may, at
its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
to the Directors (including Executive Directors, Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors), the directors
of the Company’s subsidiaries and employees of the Group and
any other persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the
Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or
will contribute to the Group. The Directors were authorised to
grant options to subscribe for shares of the Company and to allot,
issue and deal with the shares pursuant to the exercise of options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and to take all such
steps as may be necessary and/or desirable to implement and
give effect to the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue immediately following completion of the Global
Offering (as defined in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 June
2017), being 100,000,000 shares, excluding any shares that may
be issued under the options which have lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme (or any other share option
schemes of the Company), unless otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
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Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised
and outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue of the Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of
options to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is required
to be approved by our Independent Non-executive Directors.
Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed under
the Listing Rules, the number of shares that may be granted to a
substantial shareholder or any Independent Non-executive Director
or their respective associates under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) shall not exceed 0.1% of
the shares in issue, having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised, and the period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after
they have been ranted. The subscription price of a share in respect
of a particular option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the
official closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the
shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c)
the nominal value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take
effect from the date it is adopted and shall remain effective within
a period of 10 years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and

unconditional and up to the date of this interim report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, the Directors of the Company
had the following interests in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company, its Group members and/or associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

EERERTHRAEBRRKRSG - HEKROR
BEENEENRKXE

RAFHAH XABEENATARA - B
SERRARSBEER(EERELF AT
01 ([ 3825 R AR R JSEXVER) ) BB D ~ 48
BRI MBS A - MACSKINRIEE
75 M BB 1R B S 3621678 T 17 0 B RC it 3k AR
BRESTAANG AR R MR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of Interest (%)
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares FREL
EEHE B, EEEy RGOS E B2 (%)
Mr. Liu Rongru Interest in controlled corporation/ 525,000,000 52.5%
eSS Long position (Note)
ZEfEEmER T A (K
Note: B3

The entire issued share capital of Precisely Unique Limited is legally and beneficially
owned by Mr. Liu Rongru, who is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Precisely Unique Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
other interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its Group members or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this annual report, the following persons/entities
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had,
or were deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members and/or
associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRA QTR RAEER G S
KRR

RAEREY - THAL,/ EE(TRESD
AFELEENTAR) BARWEBAAL
7 - HEE AR LSRR B R AR
A BREE SRS GO EXVERE2 13
HHEX T ABBEOEATAR - REBEE
B E = 150 336 R BN AL AA T B
B MREERIAR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of Interest (%)
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shares FREL
BRER I & B EmiE igrig-4= B 5 (%)
Precisely Unique Limited Beneficial Owner (Note 1) 525,000,000 52.5%
HEBRIAE BEmEA AMEE)
Mr. Liu Rongru Interest in controlled corporation/ 525,000,000 52.5%
S0P Long position (Note 1)
RirtlEE O ER e ()
Ms. Lin Yueying Interest of spouse (Note 2) 525,000,000 52.5%
AL L fo B e (PFEE2)
Notes: Fsx -
1. The entire issued share capital of Precisely Unique Limited is legally and 1. SAERARNEPERITRAABELNEES
beneficially owned by Mr. Liu Rongru, who is deemed to be interested in the EREREE  BEANEERBARMTAERA
Shares held by Precisely Unique Limited. BB ERRD R EEREZ -
2. Ms. Lin Yueying is the spouse of Mr. Liu Rongru and is deemed or taken to 2. MARLZET AL MAEENEE  BIEESFLE
be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Liu Rongru has interest under the EIEHIEE B EER B LN ARG RSN
SFO. BRI ER RS -
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The articles of associations of the Company provides that the
Directors shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices or trusts.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and
directors of the subsidiaries of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which the controlling Shareholder
or a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions between the Group and its
connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) which
are subject to the reporting, announcement and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

The material related party transactions as disclosed in Note 28 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements are connected transactions
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group.

PURCHASES, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities, and
neither did the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell
any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year and up to the
date of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEE®RE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at
the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance
practice. The Company's corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 29 to 44.

AUDITORS

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been audited by BDO Limited which retires,
and being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the AGM. A
resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited and to authorize the Directors
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Jiang Dehua

Executive Director

Xiamen, the PRC, 22 March 2019
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The Board is committed to maintaining a good standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time
in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and comply
with the increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to
fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. The Board
considers that up to the date of this annual report, in the opinion of
the Board, the Company has complied with the CG Code except the
following deviations:

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires the chairman of
the board to invite the chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration,
Nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend
the annual general meeting. In their absence, he should invite
another member of the committee or failing this his duly appointed
delegate, to attend. Due to other business commitments,
the chairmen and members of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination committees of the Company could not attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held in May 2018.

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code requires that the chairman of
the Board shall at least annually hold meetings with Independent
Non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.
As Mr. Liu Rongru serves as the Chairman and Executive Director
concurrently, the code provision does not apply and the Company
deviates from such code provision. In addition, the Chairman of the
Board is of the view that, the Independent Non-executive Directors
can express their opinions to all Executive Directors more directly
and effectively at the Board meetings, hence the Board is of the
view that the deviation from the code provision does not have
material impact on the operation of the Board.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business
and to review its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure they comply with the evolving regulatory requirements
and to meet the rising expectations of the shareholders and other
stakeholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(A)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company, overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions, internal control, risk management systems and
monitoring the performance of the senior management. The
management is responsible for the daily operations of the
Group under the leadership of the Chairman. The Directors
have the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of
the Company.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Further details of these Committees are set out below in
section B of this corporate governance report.

The Board members during the year ended 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Rongru (Chairman of the Board and Nomination
Committee and Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Jiang Dehua

Mr. Lin Jiangtang
(resigned on 15 June 2018)

Mr. Cao Hongyu (appointed on 15 June 2018 and resigned
on 5 December 2018)

Mr. Chak Chi Shing (appointed on 5 December 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Dajin (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and Member of the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee)

Mr. Huang Xingluan (Member of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee)

Ms. Cheng Shing Yan (Chairlady of the Audit Committee)

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors from
different business and professional fields. The profiles
of each Director are set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” section in this
annual report. The Directors, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
delivery of the Board functions.
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company and to enhance the
quality of performance of the Company. The Policy aims at
achieving diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives and Selection

In designing the Board’'s composition, a number of
perspectives which include race, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, industry experience, technical
and professional experience, knowledge, skills, length of
service, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates will be taken into consideration. The
Company will also take into account factors relating to its
own business model and specific needs from time to time.
The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that
the candidates will bring to the Board. Candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board currently consists of one female member. The
Board will take opportunity to increase the proportion of
female members over time when selecting and making
recommendation on suitable candidates for Board
appointments. The Board would ensure that appropriate
balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference
to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of
bringing the Board to gender parity. The Board also aspires
to having an appropriate proportion of Directors who have
direct experience in the Group’s core markets, with different
ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the Group’s strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring
The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation
of the board diversity policy and report to the Board annually.

The Company has received annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.
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The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. Ad-hoc meetings will also be
convened when necessary. Such Board meetings involve
the active participation, either in person or through other
electronic means of communication, of a majority of
Directors.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information will be provided to all
the Directors before meetings. All the Directors will be
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expenses. All Directors
will have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for board meetings. The Company Secretary of the Company
is responsible to keep the minutes of board meetings and
meetings of Board committees. All minutes are open for
inspection by any Director at reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
six Board meetings have been held, at which the Directors
approved the interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 and the annual results of the Group for
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, reviewed the
results announcements and interim and annual reports and
resolved other business matters.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest. According to current
Board practices, any material transaction, which involves
a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting.
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Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date renewable
automatically until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other expiring
at the end of the initial term or any time thereafter. All of
their appointments are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with our Company on
22 June 2017. Each letter of appointment is for an initial
term commencing on the date of the letter of appointment
and shall continue thereafter subject to a maximum of
three years unless terminated by either party giving at least
one month’'s notice in writing. All of their appointments
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
reappointments/appointments of both the Executive
Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors and
recommended to the Board for decision.

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Each newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities.
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(B)

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has since 22 June 2017 adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 22
June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance
with paragraph A.5.2 of the Code Provisions. Its terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on regular basis; to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members; to assess the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors; and to make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The
Nomination Committee comprises two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Dajin and Mr. Huang
Xingluan and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Liu Rongru
(Chairman).

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for
the Nomination Committee to consider and make
recommendations to Shareholders for election as Directors
at general meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual
vacancies.
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Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

(M

(2)

reputation for integrity;

accomplishment and experience in the business in
which the Group is engaged in;

commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest;

diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to race, gender, age (18 years or above), educational
background, professional experience, skills and
length of service;

qualifications which include professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Company's business and corporate
strategy;

the number of existing directorships and other
commitments that may demand the attention of the
candidate;

requirement for the Board to have Independent
Non-executive Directors in accordance with the
Listing Rules and whether the candidates would
be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09
and 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any

measurable objectives adopted by the Nomination
Committee for achieving diversity on the Board; and

such other perspectives appropriate to the
Company’s business.
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Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of
the Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises
the need for an additional Director or a member of senior
management, the following procedure will be followed:

(1) The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify
potential candidates based on the criteria as set out
in the selection criteria, possibly with assistance from
external agencies and/or advisors;

(2) The Nomination Committee and/or the Company
Secretary of the Company will then provide the
Board with the biographical details and details of the
relationship between the candidate and the Company
and/or Directors, directorships held, skills and
experience, other positions which involve significant
time commitment and any other particulars required
by the Listing Rules, the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands and other regulatory requirements for
any candidate for appointment to the Board;

(3) The Nomination Committee would then make
recommendation to the Board on the proposed
candidate(s) and the terms and conditions of the
appointment;

(4) The Nomination Committee should ensure that the
proposed candidate(s) will enhance the diversity
of the Board, being particularly mindful of gender
balance;

(5) In the case of the appointment of an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should obtain all information in
relation to the proposed Director to allow the Board to
adequately assess the independence of the Director
in accordance with the factors set out in Rules 3.08,
3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any
amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange
from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the
appointment based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.
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The Company established an Audit Committee on 22 June
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules. The written
terms of reference of the Audit Committee was adopted
in compliance with paragraph C3.3 to C3.7 of the Code
Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee, among other
things, are to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors, review the financial statements and provide
material advice in respect of financial reporting and oversee
the internal control and risk management procedures of the
Company. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Cheng Shing Yan (Chairlady), Mr. Liu
Dajin and Mr. Huang Xingluan.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s
financial statements and the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, including
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company and Group.

During the year, two meetings have been held by the Audit
Committee. At such meetings, it reviewed the interim
results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2018.
It also reviewed the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 with the independent auditors
and the activities of the Group’'s internal control and risk
management functions. It also reviewed the Company’s
progress in implementing the corporate governance
requirements as set out in the CG Code.
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The Company established a Remuneration Committee on
22 June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.25 and Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The
written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
was adopted in compliance with paragraph B1.2. of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendation to the Board on the overall
remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors
and senior management of the Group and to ensure
none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.
The emoluments of Executive Directors are determined
based on their skills, knowledge, individual performance
as well as contributions, the scope of responsibility and
accountability of such Directors, taking into consideration
the Company's performance and the prevailing market
conditions. The remuneration policy of Independent Non-
executive Directors is to ensure that they are adequately
compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to
the Company's affairs including their participation in
their respective Board committees. The emoluments of
Independent Non-executive Directors are determined with
reference to their skills, experience, knowledge, duties
and market trends. As at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee consists of two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Dajin (Chairman) and
Mr. Huang Xingluan and one Executive Director, namely Mr.
Liu Rongru.
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Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in Note 12 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
two meetings have been held to review the remuneration
packages paid to Directors and senior management for the
financial year.

The attendance of individual members of the Board and
other Board Committees meetings during the year and up to
the date of this annual report is set out in the table below:

EENFNFBHNGRE PRI GE
12 ¢

RAFERERNFREY - HHEES
BITMREH - UWEHAMBERE N
TEERSREERBHFH -

RAFREREEAFREMESS LA
MEEE TEZREENEHESHBR
IR T

Meeting attended/held
HEBITER

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee
EE® EREER FHESES REEER
Executive Directors HITES
Liu Rongru e g 6/6 N/A i3 2/2 2/2
Jiang Dehua EmE 6/6 N/A 35 N/AT 38 3 N/AZ 38
Lin Jiangtang (resigned on  #TE(AZ
15 June 2018) T—-N\FRHA
+HHEEIT) 1N N/AZN 3@ A N/AZN 3 A N/AZ 38 A
Cao Hongyu (appointed on  EHF (R =
15 June 2018 and resigned &— \E X A
on 5 December 2018) +HBEZRT
RZZT—N\F
+-—ARAE
) 2/2 N/AZ 3@ N/AZN3E N/AZ i3 A
Chak Chi Shing (appointed ~ ZEB (A=
on 5 December 2018) - N\F+=
ENEEES
) 3/3 N/AT 5 N/AT i3 N/ATiE
Independent B
Non-executive Directors  FHITEZE
Liu Dajin £l 6/6 2/2 2/2 2/2
Huang Xingluan = A 6/6 2/2 2/2 2/2
Cheng Shing Yan R R 6/6 2/2 N/AT 8 N/AT 8
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(C)

Pursuant to the Compliance Advisor Agreement dated 28
April 2016 entered into between the Company and Dongxing
Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“Dongxing”),
Dongxing has been appointed as the compliance advisor
as required under the Listing Rules for the period from the
Listing Date to the date on which the Company dispatched
its annual report in respect of its financial results for the first
full financial year after 18 July 2017 (the “Listing Date"”).
Dongxing has received a fee for acting as the Company’s
compliance advisor during the period. Pursuant to Rule
3A.23 of the Listing Rules, the Company shall consult
with and, if necessary, seek advice from Dongxing on the
following matters:

° the publication of any regulatory announcement,
circular or financial report;

° where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or
connected transaction is contemplated including
share issues and share repurchase;

° where the Company proposes to use the proceeds
from the initial public offering in a manner different
from that detailed in the Prospectus or where the
business activities, developments or results of the
Company deviate from any forecast, estimate or other
information in the prospectus; and

o where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of the
Company regarding unusual movements in the price
or trading volume of the securities of the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing accounts, the financial
statements, performance position and prospects of
the Group. Management has provided information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before
the Board for approval. The Directors believed that they
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgment and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable.
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The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to the events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The accounts for the year were audited by BDO Limited
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Auditor’s Remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the analysis of the
remuneration of the Company's auditor, BDO Limited, paid/
payable is set out below:

B MR ELAERTEE S K
EHEAN - WA H A EEIFEL
LRENELEALM - At - EFEC
BB EEEREV RS

AEERELHBEBLEEZSIME
BRERAREZ - REMERERERK
RBFERE LER

%X%‘fﬁﬁ%ﬁ@l/
BE_Z-N\F+_A=1T—HLF
Z E1‘T/F’§1‘J‘$’AT¢?§&E$%§%J_F
BREAEEHAARARNFMOMN
I -

Amount

&5

(HK$’000)

(F®x)

Audit services FEAZIRTS 1,080
The Audit Committee will recommend the reappointment of ERLZEORERERE B EERY
BDO Limited for audit service, and consider the engagement BN R A R B R - W
of the non-audit services to ensure the independence and EERIEEITIEEZ RS AR EZR

objectivity of audit service.
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(D) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the internal control
and risk management systems of the Company. Internal
controls and risk management are used by the Board to
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
safeguard the investment of Shareholders and assets of the
Company and to ensure compliance with relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements. The Company's internal control
and risk management policies are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatements and help the Board identify and mitigate, but
not eliminate, risk exposure. The policies and procedures
of internal controls (which include financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management systems)
are considered to be adequate and effective based on the
annual review conducted by the Board through the Audit
Committee.

The Company has established and maintained procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of
inside information. The Company has adopted a code of
conduct for dealing in the securities of the Company by the
Directors in accordance with Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Other employees of the Group who are likely to be
in possession of inside information of the Company are
also subject to dealing restrictions. Any inside information
and any information which may potentially constitute inside
information is promptly identified, assessed and escalated
to the Board and for the Board to decide on the need for
disclosure. Inside information and other information which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules
will be announced on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in due course.

In light of the size and scale of the Group's businesses, the
Group currently does not have an internal audit department.
The Board will review and consider to establish such
department as and when it thinks necessary. As such,
the Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly
responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
In order to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance, the Company engaged an external independent
consultant with professional staff in possession of relevant
expertise to assist in identifying and assessing the risks of
the Group through a series of interviews; and independently
perform internal control review and assess effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems.
The results of the independent review and assessment
have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.
The improvement of the systems of risk management
and internal control is an ongoing process and the Board
maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen the
Company’'s control environment and processes. Based
on the findings and recommendations of the report as
well as the comments of the Audit Committee, the Board
considered the internal control and risk management
systems effective and adequate.
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(E)

(F)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board appoints its Company Secretary in accordance
with the Company’'s Articles of Association and in
compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of the current Company Secretary is set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 6 to 10 of this annual
report. The Company Secretary has complied with the
professional training requirement as set out in the Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2018.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board welcomes shareholders to present their views
and shareholders may at any time submit their questions
and concerns about the Group. Enquiries may be put
to the Board or senior management by contacting the
Company Secretary through our shareholders’ email at
enquiry@xmwofan.com or by phone at 852-3702 6977 or
directly by raising questions at the general meeting of the
Company.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of Company's
paid up capital may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting. The objects of the meeting
must be stated in the related requisition deposited at the
Company's registered office and addressing to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The extraordinary general meeting will be held
within 2 months after the deposition of such requisition.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the election of individual
Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.

Any Shareholder may appoint a proxy or representative to

attend the general meeting, and they are entitled to exercise
the same voting rights in the meeting.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies. To promote effective
communication, the Company maintains a website at
http://www.xmwofan.com, where up-to-date information
and updates on the Company's business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with its shareholders and in particular, through AGMs
or other general meetings to communicate with the
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to participate in
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on 15
May 2019. The notice of AGM wiill be sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

Constitutional Documents

The latest version of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company is posted on the Company's
website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZEMHES

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA SHENGHAI FOOD
HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 127,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018 and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKASs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter are those matter that, in our professional
judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in Note 4
and disclosure of revenue in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the dried seafood, algae and
fungi and seafood snacks trading business.

Revenue represents income from sales of dried seafood, algae and
fungi and seafood snacks sourced from Mainland China.

BHPEABRRERARAF
SRR
(RESHESTIMAZLBRAA])

=R

AR (A TEHEIEE D EEXTEAER
mERARDB(TERR L) REKE AR (5
WIEEREDENELIE127ENERE MER
= EPEER_ZE-N\F+_A=1t—HH
RAEMBRLE  BEZBALFENGAEM
Wamk  GEERZEHX HARERERK
RAMBWRHTE  BRENSTHEME -

ER5 HEVBERRCREFTESTQ
B Z(EEPBHRSEADEEMA TR
B EEER_T-N\Ft_A=1+—H2Z#&K
BUBHRRARBEZB ILFEZHGAMBRER
LEFERSRE - YR RREB(QBEH)D
BERTZ /R -

RRER
BEECREBEBFESTMAGRM 2 (EBZE
ER)ETEZ - BEERZFEAT Z2EER
ARE [ RBMRBRG M BRR ZEE]—
B o  RIBFBSAMAG Z(EE S
ehEET A& BEFBYR &F
 REFERBZTARBITEMBEERE -
EE5RE BEEMERZEREERRMEE
WRESZERERIRHER -

EREXEE

BREZFAR/RBEES CEXHE - ARY
ARG EPBRECBRRRERSEH - %5
EHRRAERSFERERRAMBRR AL AR
RSETRIE - BE T SHNSFFRERES
ZER -

Wy 25 TR R
FLHANGEE B RRMFAZERNGF R
B2 K i 516 2 WA KR ©

BERETENELEER  RREMNERE
AN FREERE 5 ¥R o

WestsiHE B P BIAMERE 208 Em - RE
7 i N AR o A SR R EE m AV IR o

FEASREARZEBRERAR | 22— /\FERS
China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2018

45



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZEMHES

REVENUE RECOGNITION - continued

The Group enters into sale and purchase agreements with the
distributors and supermarkets and in accordance with the terms
of the agreements, revenue is recognised when control of good or
services is transferred to the distributors and supermarkets.

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the Group
and therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
recognition of revenue by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.

OUR RESPONSE
Our procedures in relation to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

° Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls which govern revenue recognition;

° Inspecting sale and purchase agreements, on a sample
basis, to understand the terms of delivery and assess
whether management recognised the related revenue in
accordance with the Group's accounting policies, with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

° Comparing sales records for a sample of sales transactions
recorded during the year with relevant underlying
documentation, which included sales invoices and good
delivery notes with evidence of the customers’ receipt
of the goods and the date of receipt of the goods by the
customers;

° Comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue transactions
recorded before and after the financial year end date with
the underlying sale and purchase agreements and good
delivery notes to determine whether the related revenue had
been recognized in the appropriate financial period,

o Scrutinising all journals affecting revenue raised during the
reporting period and comparing details of a sample of these
journal, which met certain risk-based criteria, with relevant
underlying documentation.
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IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON TRADE RECEIVABLES
Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in Note 4,
accounting estimates and judgements in Note 5 and disclosure
of trade receivables in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net trade receivables
amounting to approximately RMB109,942,000, after making loss
allowance of approximately RMB437,000. It represents 22% of
the total assets of the Group and is considered quantitatively
significant to the Group.

The Group's loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit loss ("ECL") based on management’s
estimated loss rates for each category of trade receivables. The
estimated loss rates take into account the aging of the trade
receivables, overdue balances, information regarding the ability and
intent of the debtor to pay and historical data on default rates.

Management is required to apply judgement in assessing the loss
allowance for trade receivables under the ECL model. The ability
of the debtors to repay the Group depends on shared credit risk
characteristics of trade receivables groups and market conditions
which involves inherent uncertainty.

We identified the loss allowance for trade receivables as a key audit
matter because of the inherent uncertainty in assessing if trade
receivables will be recovered and because the assessment of the
ECLs requires the exercise of management judgement.

OUR RESPONSE
Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment on trade receivables included:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt collection and the
calculation of the ECLs;

° assessing the trade receivables ageing report by group
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due by comparing the details of individual items with
underlying invoices on a sample basis;

° obtaining an understanding of the basis of management's
approach to measuring ECLs of trade receivable balances
and evaluating the loss allowance made by management
with reference to the industry in which the debtors are
operating, ageing of receivables, overdue balance, historical
and post year-end payment records, and evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
base on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information. This included inspecting relevant
correspondence with individual debtors; and

° comparing cash receipts from debtors subsequent to the
financial year end relating to trade receivable balances
at 31 December 2018 with bank statement and relevant
underlying documentation on a sample basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZEMHES

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
BYZEMHES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’'s internal
control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZEMHES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
the matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matter in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wan Che Bun

Practising Certificate Number P05804

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HiZ =T — /\F+=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3B ERI © UAREFIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
{hr=s AR®T T ARETT
Revenue g 6 667,958 644,407
Cost of sales SHE AR (498,864) (480,901)
Gross profit EF 169,094 163,506
Other income and other gains/(losses), H b A R EAbdzs, (E518)
net HEE 7 2,363 195
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEMAY (54,575) (23,806)
Administrative expenses THRX (11,553) (34,912)
Expected credit losses on financial assets &g AENTEHEZEEIE 8 (72) =
Other expenses HEfA X (842) (598)
Profit before income tax R BT 1884 Alas F 9 104,415 104,385
Income tax expense Frig®i i 10 (28,001) (34,183)
Profit for the year attributable ERARHEE ABLEREF
to owners of the Company 76,414 70,202
Other comprehensive income Hit2mEUBA
Items that will be reclassified HEfEEF D2 1B by
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
— Exchange differences arising on —ME B INERSE AR
translation of foreign operations PE 3 =R 547 (1,719)
Other comprehensive income for the year fFREMEEIA 547 (1,719)
Profit and total comprehensive income Z2AT#EHE AL ERSF]
for the year attributable to owners A O
of the Company 76,961 68,483
Earnings per share BRERN
- Basic and Diluted (RMB) - EXR#BE(ARYET) 11 0.0764 0.0812
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

e P BRI R

As at 31 December 2018 R=F— \F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3B ERI © UAREFIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
P AR¥ T ARETFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Plant and equipment e 13 34,913 130
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE E 24 281 =
Prepaid lease payments JEAE A 14 79 129
Deposits paid to suppliers YRFHERZIZS 15 5,616 6,000
Prepayment for acquisition of Wit B8 T 5 % 2% fs ) FE 1< R TR
plant and equipment 16 35,000 -
75,889 6,259
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 70,306 41,575
Trade receivables B 5 A 18 109,942 97,914
Deposits, prepayments and e BNREREAM
other receivables FEU R IR 19 12,713 13,967
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEEY 20 234,253 285,243
427,214 438,699
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables =) ABE/ e 21 39,910 61,056
Accruals, deposits received and BETER  BEWiREe X
other payables Hth E A FR I8 22 7,271 3,602
Provision for taxation TIEEE 8,918 9,323
56,099 73,981
Net current assets RBEEFE 371,115 364,718
Net assets BEE 447,004 370,977
CAPITAL AND RESERVE BAR#E 25
Share capital R AN 8,723 8,723
Reserves B 438,281 362,254
Total equity R RE 447,004 370,977
On behalf of the directors REEE
Mr. Liu Rongru Mr. Jiang Dehua
218k 4 BEELE
Director Director
E 2

PREFABRMIZERER QA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

mERBEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HiZ =T — /\F+=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S BIERI - UAREYITR)

Share Share Special ~ Statutory  Exchange Other  Retained Total
capital premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  earnings* equity
ke RiteE* HHRE  iERE EXRE  AbREe  REERP bhE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETR
Note26 ~ Notefd) ~ Notel)  Notel(cl
&5 Fiza) () Fzk(e)
Balance as at 1 January 2017 RZE-tE-F-AM&E - - 17,800 7,900 (804) 5800 124890 155,586
Profit for the year EmET - - - - - - 70202 70,202
Other comprehensive income Et2EUA
Exchange differences arising on BEBIEBELN
translation of foreign operations EREHE - - - - (1.719) - - (1.719)
Total comprehensive income Ep2ANALE
for the year - - - - (1,719 - 70,202 68,483
Transfer to statutory reserves BRRTTHE - - - 5,767 - - (5,767) -
Issue of shares pursuant to the listng ~ RARAARA FHTETRG
of the Company's share [note 25(g))  (F£F251g)) 2166 140,795 - - - - - 142,961
Capitalisation of shareholders' loan ~ REEHATEA
(note 25/e) (Pr3E25(e)) 2 19938 - - - - - 19940
Capitalisation issue of ordinary shares  EiBHREVE R &7
(note 251f)) (Bfs25(1) 655 (6,550) - - - - - -
Expense incurred in connection with — BBIHEERELZHX
issue of new ordinary share (HsE25(9)
{note 25(g)) = (15,993) = = S S = (15,993)
Balance as at 31 December 201725~ REA2FIR=5—LF
originally presented TZRZT-RHNER 8,723 138,185 17,800 13,667 (2,523) 5,800 189,325 370,977
Initial application of HKFRS 9, netof  #IAEEE AT KRLER
deferred tax 295 MRELHE - - - - - - (934) (934)
Restated balance as at 1 January ~ W-E-N\5-B-Hf
2018 BEYLE 8,723 138,185 17,800 13,667 (2,523) 5,800 188,391 370,043
Profit for the year R - - - - - - 76,414 76,414
Other comprehensive income B2 ElA - - - - - - - -
Exchange differences arising on BERNERELD
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - - 547 - - 547
Total comprehensive income ER2EHNEE
for the year - - - - 547 - 76,414 76,961
Transfer to statutory reserves BRED T - - - 3,763 - - (3,763) -
Balance as at 31 December 2018 ~ W=ZE-NE+ZA=+-H
e 8,723 138,185 17,800 17,430 (1,976) 5,800 261,042 447,004
* The total of these balances represents “Reserves” in the consolidated * REE R BRI GAMEIRR R AN [FHE] -

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HiZ =T — /\F+=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S BIERI - UAREYITR)

Notes: PR EE -

(a) Share premium account of the Company represents the excess of the  (a) ARElzBROaERDIEEWAMERIENREAR
proceeds received over the nominal value of the Company’s share issued. AT EEZ B -

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2014, the director has waived the (b) BE-_Z-—NF+_A=+—BHLEE BFENK
repayment amounted to RMB17,800,000 from its outstanding balance. It was ZIWELAERASS AR 17,800,000 THIER ©
deemed as contribution to the Company and has been capitalised to special HEBEBRARARNARBEEN D BB =R
reserve. BIEEZ -

(c) The statutory reserve represents the amount transferred from net profit for (c) ATEREEBRERAETBEAZERRK B R
the year of the subsidiaries established in the PRC (based on the subsidiaries AR FE N AT (IRIRHE 2 760 BUA E 58
PRC statutory financial statements) in accordance with the relevant PRC RIERENEH  BEATHREEINZZEWNBELA
laws until the statutory reserves reaches 50% of the registered capital of the AMERES0% o BIEAR K Z T EE g M
subsidiaries. The statutory reserve cannot be reduced except either in setting BAR  BATECRAEEREE -

off the accumulated losses or increasing capital.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

CASH FLOWS
RERSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HiZ =T — /\F+=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3B ERI © UAREFIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRENE
Profit before income tax & P15 %4 BT Vi ) 104,415 104,385
Adjustments for: AT HBEEL AR
Depreciation of plant and equipment WE N EREITE 2,298 101
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR H & SRR 50 50
Reversal of impairment loss on deposit TR THERZESH
paid to suppliers REBEEE (145) =
Bank Interest Income RITH S WA (1,069) (575)
Loan Interest income EFFEHA (1,242) (68)
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 EYGRIE R BERE 67 =
Impairment loss on loan receivables FEWE SR EBE 150 =
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment HEMENZENER 3 -
Operating profit before working capital BIEE BB E ST
changes 104,527 103,893
Increase in trade receivables 2 5 FEWGRIA I AN (12,465) (23,381)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e FANFREREM
prepayments and other receivables FEMERIER A, (45 n) 1,599 (14,308)
Increase in inventories ZEEN (28,731) (9,984)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B S EMAFRIECRD), /1N (21,146) 21,341
Increase in accruals, deposits received EErER - BElWite REM
and other payables FEATFRIA I AN 3,612 1,404
Cash generated from operations KEMEEME D 47,396 78,965
Income taxes paid BEAATEH (28,410) (31,784)
Net cash generated from operating activities AS& & B4+ FH 2 18,986 47,181
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

CASH FLOWS
RERSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E —T— \FE+-_A=+—HILtEE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BB ERI - AAREFIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —FE—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEESRE
Prepayment for acquisition of plant and W B R 55 B RR A
equipment TERTFIB (35,000) =
Purchases of plant and equipment BEMWmENEE (37,084) (35)
Interest received B U H 8 2,257 575
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZE(FTE) FridFRz
investing activities (69,827) 540
Cash flows from financing activities METHEERE
Capitalisation of listing expense AT EFTER - (15,993)
Proceed from issue of shares BTG TS RIE - 142,961
Advance from shareholders fRER B S 2,134
Net cash generated from financing activities gt &% BjE 4 0,FH & - 129,102
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁﬁﬁ}ﬁﬁ%f‘%
cash equivalents W) R EE (50,841) 176,823
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ﬂi?ﬂiﬁﬁﬁfﬁ.ﬁgﬁw
of year 285,243 109,982
Effect of exchange rate changes on EXSBHReRESEEY
cash and cash equivalents =% (149) (1,562)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRIEERRELZEY 234,253 285,243
Analysis of balances of cash and ReERRESEBEYHE
cash equivalents B2 7
Cash and bank balances e MIBITES 234,253 285,243
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 8 January 2016 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as revised and consolidated) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 18 July 2017. The Company's registered office is
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company's
principal place of business is located at 5th floor, No.5
Factory, Mexi Road, Huandong Water, Tongon District, Hui
Industrial Park, Xiamen City, Fujian Province, PRC.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries (together with
the Company collectively refer to as “Group”) is packaging
and sales of seafood products.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs -
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
has applied, for the first time, the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new and revised HKFRSs"”) issued by the HKICPA,
which are effective for the Group's financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRSs 2014-2016 First-time adoption of Hong
Cycle Kong Financial Reporting

Standards

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 28,
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Investments in Associates
Cycle and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Amendments to Revenue from Contracts with

HKFRS 15 Customers (Clarifications to

HKIFRS 15)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration
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ARABRZZE—R"F—AN\BRERH
SEHERNFEFE22E(1961F FE35 %
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—tF LA+ N\BUREEBHERS
FrEMRAR([HRZM]) ER LM o K
A AR FE % S BE AL FA Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RaERAMBHRELEAN(EEBYMK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued HMEER|)—&
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs - (A) RPHFTRBTEBHBER
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued HEA-B=FE-NF-H-—
HREN &
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments A. BB B & ERIFE 9
— £@MIT A
() Classification and measurement of ) ZRIENDHE
financial instruments METE
HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial BB HmEE
Instruments: Recognition and BIZE 9 BN BB
Measurement for annual periods EETERIE395%
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, *PRIA: 5=
bringing together all three aspects of T-NF—H—
the accounting for financial instruments: H#e sk 2 & 8 &
(1) classification and measurement; (2) EHIE R ER R
impairment; and (3) hedge accounting. rE e mT
The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 BEgwmE =
January 2018 has resulted in changes in &@rme e —
accounting policies of the Group and the (DB RE
amounts recognised in the consolidated 2 2RE: Rk
interim financial statements. (3) HHEE - B
—E-N\E—H
—HRRMEE
B MR 2ERIZE9
RERAEEE
TR A B AE 4R
& W R BF 7% R
FERRESED
REE -
The following tables summarised TERBABESR
the impact, net of tax, of transition BEYBWmEE
to HKFRS 9 on the opening balance Aot e E —
of reserves, retained earnings as of Z—-NF—AH—
1 January 2018 as follows (increase/ H &) B 9 % 5 &2
(decrease)): BENRE AT H
T2 (BRBE)
(380, CRL))
RMB'000
ARBT T
Retained earnings REBF
Retained earnings as at R-—EB—+t&E+=-HA=+—8H
31 December 2017 H R EE B F 189,325
Increase in expected credit losses EHEWHIE - BREREX
("ECLs") in trade receivables, loan T EER 2 e mTERE
receivables and deposit paid to BEEB(TEHEEBE])IZ
suppliers (note 2(A)Alii) below) T HEE2(AAGH)) (1,210)
Increase in deferred tax asset of ECLs 2B SEWKIE - B ER RS
in trade receivables, loan receivables Tt ER 2 IZ4MIEHIE
and deposit paid to suppliers BEBZEEREEEL N 276
Restated retained earningsasat1 RHRZ=-ZE—N\F—HA—HHK
January 2018 RESREEF 188,391
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RANERMBREEN(EFERK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued HER ) - &
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs - (A) WRMHFTRETEBHBER
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued EE-BA=B-NF-A—
BEEM—&
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments — A. §?§§zf§§ﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁ9%
continued —FHMIA @
(i) Classification and measurement of (i) SHIANDE
financial instruments — continued &E == .
HKFRS 9 carries forward the BB
recognition, classification and E'A'J:%Q’uﬁi%iﬂ%-ﬁ/%
measurement requirements for financial Z A F 399
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for Bre@aEn
financial liabilities designated at R SRR
fair value through profit or losses E;fﬁi ’ iﬁ?‘amﬂ
("FVTPL"), where the amount of change ?5 A %ﬁ &t )\i’g‘
in fair value attributable to change in @ ([ R FEE
credit risk of the liability is recognised ABm DD
in other comprehensive income %%E’%M\;@E
unless that would create or enlarge & 1= B 2 e 2 )
an accounting mismatch. In addition, El /@\(H’J’D\¥T§k
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in @Jigﬁﬁ/\\%ﬁﬂi\
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial ﬁ%?\ﬁﬁaﬂ ﬁ@
assets and financial liabilities. However, g;‘é" % EE}ZT}%K
it eliminates the previous HKAS 39 = EJF%E@EEWER Bl
categories for financial assets of held I
to maturity financial assets, loans ﬁéﬁﬁf%ﬁ%ﬁ
and receivables and available-for- i'Jﬁﬁ9 M%Eéffé
sale financial assets. The adoption of & RF A A 3957
HKFRS 9 has no material impact on Q‘giﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
the Group's accounting policies related ng ik BEM
to financial liabilities and derivative *EE ° ﬁﬁ'ﬁ ’ /Hi\
financial instruments. The impact of B PQZEH'J N,
HKFRS 9 on the Group's classification ﬁéﬂfﬁ% A&
and measurement of financial assets is LE:ZE - BER R R
set out below. FRIE DA K AT 4
EeMEEND
B ERE39
T eREER
Al o BR 49 E BB
B EERFE 5K
HAEEHESH
BERTESRE
TEREBO g
MELmE KRN
R ]
B EERFE ISR
YAEEDE R
ATESREEN
TEHIWT -
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Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade
receivables (that the trade receivables
do not contain a significant financing
component in accordance with HKFRS
15), an entity shall, at initial recognition,
measure a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at FVTPL, transaction costs. A financial

asset is classified as: (i) financial
assets at amortised cost (“amortised
costs”); (ii) financial assets at fair

value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI"); or (iii) FVTPL (as
defined in above). The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS 9
is generally based on two criteria: (i)
the business model under which the
financial asset is managed and (ii) its
contractual cash flow characteristics
(the “solely payments of principal and
interest” criterion, also known as “SPPI
criterion”). Under HKFRS 9, embedded
derivatives is no longer required to
be separated from a host financial
asset. Instead, the hybrid financial
instrument is assessed as a whole for
the classification.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. B BB REER ([ FEBEE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - continued EXER ) &
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs - (A)  BREMFTRIETEBHBER
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued HEA-B=FE—-NE—HF—
HtEM— &
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments — A. %fgﬁ{ﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%g%
continued - THITA-& .
(i) Classification and measurement of (i) SRIANDE
financial instruments — continued MPErE-E

BI5EEB TR
B FIYR
BRETE SRR
B (RIEE B
EREERE1L
% Z 5
BB IEE KRG
B BEE
KA KR A
BRAFENRZS
BN (il &30 3R 1%
ANFEFABER
ZERMEE)E
TRMEE - &R
BEMES ()&
58 AR AR (T 8 5
RADEZE
BEE ()R A
FEFAEME
mW A (TR 2 F
Bt AEM2m
WADZE/E
B SGiNiRA T
ERPNEAGE -
BEX) - REE
75 B 75 3R 5 2 8
FEo%  SREBE
ZOBE—RER
MEZER] « ()25
BESER ¥
BEAR (VHEA
HELTERH
CEEY-FEaE ¥a
MR B | #£8]) -
B 15 F B B 5 &R
HEBIE IS -
ARXTET AR
BEEITESR
BESHANR -
BmARz  BE
XNEeRMIAAR
B EDME -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RSB EREERN(FAME
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued EER )&
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs - (A) HBHFTRETEBUER
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued HEA-B=-FE—N\E—F—
HeEM— &
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments — A. & B E IR & ZERIE 99
continued — 2HTA-#F
(i) Classification and measurement of (i) TRTANSE
financial instruments — continued o RTE &
A financial asset is measured at E % Bl & = A
amortised cost if it meets both of the HFEUTBHE -
following conditions are met and it has B EEEZA
not been designated as at FVTPL: FEE AEE
Az mEER
BESHRANGT 2
o It is held within a business . ZeRE
model whose objective is to hold EfR— @A
financial assets in order to collect EREE R
contractual cash flows; and A<
& E R
& HIR %
mE 2%
% E K AT
BE &
o The contractual terms of the o ZEmE
financial asset give rise on EZAH
specified dates to cash flows that {6 X AFE R
meet the SPPI criterion. ¥ E H
EEFE
EAIE
e & F
B2 Bl A
HEME °
A debt investment is measured at 14 & 7 % & [B B
FVOCI if it meets both of the following HFEUTG&YE
conditions and it has not been BI¥FEREEZRA
designated as at FVTPL: FEE ABE
AlZBEBRER
BAFEGFAE
2 EBAGE
o It is held within a business model . 7 E
whose objective is to achieved by & /R — @
both collecting contractual cash EEBRB
flows and selling financial assets; B A 4
and HeRE
Fr#Aa
)54
o The contractual terms of the o ZemE
financial asset give rise on EZAH
specified dates to cash flows that {6 X E R
meet the SPPI criterion. ¥ E H
EEXEFE
255«
K& M F|
B ZEBR
REME °
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB B KREERN (BB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - continued EXR]) -8
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs - (A)  ERQFET BT EBHBER
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued HEEA-B=-FE—-NF—F—
B —&
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments — A. & B E IR & ZERIE 99
continued — 2HTA-#F
(i) Classification and measurement of (i) ST HEMNDE
financial instruments — continued o ATEBE
On initial recognition of an equity B 1) X T &
investment that is not held for trading, HIEE

the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in
the investment's fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment
basis. All other financial assets not
classified at amortised cost or FVOCI
as described above are classified as

o

= -
IR 535 Rk F o= A 5 2

N =

AVIN
Fol R B 2 N> D i R 0 5 i B

- SEmRER R o RS Y B S m
I3 > 590 i 2 T A 3 o D > s o > S > ol 3oL M R o 4 > i B S5 S

> R ] e 3 5 B

FVTPL. This includes all derivative 4
financial assets. On initial recognition, =+
the Group may irrevocably designate A
a financial asset that otherwise meets =
the requirements to be measured at F1E
amortised cost or FVOCI at FVTPL if o It

o B S I e 5 W - B N O i 2 R

S35 EE O EDK S s o D 1 2 7 SR i 2 2 G S 2 i R ok % S

doing so eliminates or significantly THES
reduces an accounting mismatch that R AR
would otherwise arise. C K& E
BB H e TE
BE(REAM
55 1R 85
AFEER
FEAHME
AZBE)
AFEEEF A
CBIIRRA
& A] 8 BR 5k
WA EE R
.
The following accounting policies would AT =25 R S
be applied to the Group's financial HRARNAEEZ
assets as follows: TREE :
Amortised cost Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently

measured using the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

BEIHRCR REHEKATE eMEEREBRRKAERANEESE - FIEHK
A~ R U Es R BB LA RO E R B2 TR o AR IERER 2 (A
WE B R o

The following table summarizes the THREMAEE
original measurement categories under RZE—)\F—
HKAS 39 and the new measurement A—HR&ESH
categories under HKRS 9 for each class EERESTAS
of the Group's financial assets as at 1 = ZE B 25 39 5% 1Y
January 2018: REF=ER R
1B 5 & & B 5 W
A FGRHFN
FFEHEA -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - continued
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs -
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments -
continued
Classification and measurement of

(i)

financial instruments — continued

Financial assets

TREE

Original classification
under HKAS 39

REE B ER
B39 R B R

2. HEMBBMBBREEAN(EEBHHK
HEA ) — &
(A)  BRWMHETRETEBHBER
HEN-B-F-NF-A-
AL —&
A BEHBEREERFIN
— 2ATH-&
(i) EMTAKNSHR

=8

Carrying Carrying

amount amount

as at as at

1 January 1 January

New classification 2018 under 2018 under
under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
B

BREEE BRB%

2R HwEEA

£395 RN ELLAS

RESBHK —E-NFE ZE-N\F
WMEXEHFEIEN —BA—HK —HB—HH
&R BRE{E BRE B

RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETT

Trade receivables

B 5 EYGIR

Deposits paid to
suppliers

INFHERZES

Loan receivables

FEME K

Loans and receivables
(note 2(A)Alii)(a))
ER N WA
(BFsE2(A)AC) (a))
Loans and receivables
(note 2(A)A(ii)(a))
SRR IR
(BFzE2(A)ACG) (a))
Loans and receivables
(note 2(A)Alii)(a))
B3R IR
(BFEE2(A)ACG) (a))

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed
the Group's impairment model by
replacing the HKAS 39 “incurred loss
model” to the "expected credit losses
model” ("ECL Model").
requires the Group to recognised ECLs
for trade receivables, financial assets
at amortised costs, contract assets and
debt investment at FVOCI earlier than
HKAS 39. Cash and cash equivalents
are subject to ECL model but the
impairment is immaterial for the current

period.

HKFRS 9

Amortised cost 97,914 97,544
B
Amortised cost 6,000 5,471
B
Amortised cost 12,604 12,293
B AR

]
s
ot
=
iy

|
E25
jli

S

e
t itk

I;H% - %m-}ﬁf\
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B ey
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB B KREERN (BB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued HERA]) &
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs - (A) BRWMHFETRETEBHBER
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued HEE-BZZ-NF—8—
ARREN &
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments — A. BB IR EERFEIR
continued — 2R TA-#F
(i) Impairment of financial assets — (i) SREERE—
continued B
Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances REEEVER
are measured on either of the following EAERIZEIIR - S
bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are BEEERUATE
the ECLs that result from possible IR EER S
default events within the 12 months (1) 121& A8 ER{E
after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime EEE: ARR
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from L HE®R1218 A
all possible default events over the N B A E)F] BRI
expected life of a financial instrument. NEHEHWIE
HEEBE: Rk
)2 HFEHEE
BB AR T M
TEEAFHR
FrEREEN S
HEENTEBRE
B8 o
Measurement of ECLs J};ELE@EEE??DH@
Al &2
ECLs are based on the difference FEHEERRHE
between the contractual cash flows RIRIE S & e
due in accordance with the contract K& A IR & i
and all the cash flows that the Group 7K & B 78 2 W R
expects to receive. The shortfall is then WFERERE
discounted at an approximation to the ZHEBERE - &
assets’ original effective interest rate. ERHERBREE
RER A XRBI
KoLt RALIR -
The Group has elected to measure loss AEBEERA
allowances for trade receivables using AWM B REE
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has AIZE 95k Mk 7 0%
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. ATEE SRR
And the Group has elected to measure THR BB B
loss allowance for deposits paid to W EREEEE
suppliers and loan receivable using HEEEBEGTE
HKFRS 9 general approach. The Group TEHE BB -
has established a provision matrix that REEEERA
is based on the Group's historical credit BT IEHRE %
loss experience, adjusted for forward- BIB9S — A 5 &
looking factors specific to the debtors FEE X T H
and the economic environment. Rk e kE
WEFR A K%
- AEEDR
BEEBTIEER
B &S EBE
k- BRER
B Bt FE UK BR SRR
FERIBIIE MR =
&g%%%?%
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs -
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments -
continued

(i)

Impairment of financial assets —
continued
Presentation of ECLs

2. RaERAMBHREEAN(FEBAMK
S£XEH| ) —8&

(A) h%ﬁi%ﬁa]'/ﬁ«‘ﬂx&]-ﬁ/%mﬁ%iﬁ
HEH-B=-ZE-NE—H—
AfEN—&

A. BB B IREERFEIR
— @M T A&

i) EREERE—E
BHEEEREY

=27l
Loss allowances for financial assets BN A 2
measured at amortised cost are deducted HEmEERNE
from the gross carrying amount of the EREBEER
assets. FABZERHIBR ©
Impact of the ECLs model B (5 B8 1R
A E
(a) Impairment of trade receivables (a) g 5’
FIER(E
As mentioned above, the Group kAT
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified o AR &
approach to measure ECLs which KAB
adopts a life time ECLs for all R R
trade receivables. To measure & B E
the ECLs, trade receivables have 9 % G 1k
been grouped based on shared E s E TR
credit risk characteristics and BEEB
the days past due. The loss B8R
allowance as at 1 January 2018 A E5%
was determined as follows for JE Uk 3k 18
trade receivables as follows: HAER
A TEH S
EEE -
BETETE
HEE 8
BB
FE U 3k 18
2R & &
o= B R
B 2 % B
Ko By B
o5 -
g 5 kW
HKIER =
T—N\F
") 1B &
BIHERE
U
More than More than
30 days 60 days
and and
less than less than
60 days 90 days
As at 1 January 2018 Current past%ugg past due Total
BE30A EB60A
—Z-N\f-HA-H HE  BEN60E {BIEH908 it
Expected credit loss  TEHIEEEELH X
rate (%) (%) 0.19% 0.75% 1.68%
Gross carrying amount B[ #(5
(RMB'000) (ARETT) 65,093 32,595 226 97,914
Loss allowance EERE
(RMB'000) (AREFT) (122) (244) (4) (370)
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n e IR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs -
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments -

continued

(i) Impairment of financial assets —

continued
Impact of the ECLs model — continued

(a)

— continued

The increase in loss allowances
for trade receivables upon
the transition to HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018 were
approximately RMB370,000. The
loss allowances further increased
for approximately RMB67,000 for
trade receivables during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Impairment of deposits paid to
suppliers and loan receivables

Other financial assets at
amortised cost of the Group
includes deposits paid to
suppliers and loan receivables.
Applying the ECLs model result
in the recognition of ECLs of
approximately RMB840,000 on
1 January 2018 and a further
increased ECLs of approximately
RMB5,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018.

2. HEMBRBUMBHREE

%E’EE!UJ)—,%E

BI([ &2

(A) RMHT  RETEBUER
HEEN-H-_F-NF-A—-

BB 3 —

A. £ ﬁﬂ‘ﬁiﬁi/ﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ
— 2T A4
(i) iﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ—ﬁ

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

9 was generally adopted without
restating comparative information. The
reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new ECLs rules
are therefore not reflected in the
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, but are recognised
in the statement of financial position
on 1 January 2018. This mean that
differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial
liabilities resulting from the adoption
of HKFRS 9 are recognised in retained
earnings and reserves as at 1 January
2018. Accordingly, the information
presented for 2017 does not reflect the
requirements of HKFRS 9 but rather
those of HKAS 39.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RSB EREERN(FAME
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued E£ER])—-E
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs - (A) ERFHFTEETEBHKR
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued LEH-H-FE-N\E—H—
HiEM— &

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments — A. & BRI & ER 99

continued — @I A&

(i) Transition (i)  EEZHE
The Group has applied the transitional AEEBEEERS
provision in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 7 B 1 R % R

FO M B E
& - AEEB
B i & 2RI S 9
U2 EE RN
HBBEEAE L
BER - Bt
MEHEEEE
HMAEAWMESH
DERABRLE
-+ F
+=-—A=+—8H
B B 75 kS &R AP
R ERZF
—N\FE—H—H
/) B 75 AR R R A
R HiER =
Z-NF—A—
B R & E B 5
RMEEBFEIR
EEXNemEE
HemaEniR
HEEZENRE
B R R PR
ReAW —F
—tER2HNME
B = E S
B Rk R 59
RHRTE - ER
A AR EA
FIRMIETE

%
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRANEBTEREER(FABME
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued REER )&
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs - (A) BRHFTLETEBUER
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued HEEA-B=FE—-NF—HF—
HieEN—&
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments — A. BB EERFE I
continued —L@HMT A&
(i) Transition (i)  BEZHE
The following assessments have been AT S A6 T AR 38
made on the basis of the facts and BEEMBEREE
circumstances that existed at the date BIZE 95k #) 7 fE A
of initial application of HKFRS 9 (the HEA([ ¥ FE A
“DIA"): HH ) FEMNSE
ERERMED
o The determination of the . EERA
business model within which a e el &
financial asset is held:; B ER
E

. The designation and revocation . B E R
of previous designations of 5 5t Al ¥8
certain financial assets and EHET
financial liabilities as measured at SR EE
FVTPL; and ke ma
BED2EB
BN FE
AR

HE R
o The designation of certain o EEHILA
investments in equity FEFFAE
investments not held for trading GUEETL N
as at FVOCI. BI3EFAE
EEERR
TEENE

TFEE -
If an investment in a debt investment MR EFRED
had low credit risk at the DIA, then "EEV T ER
the Group has assumed that the credit HEEBRED
risk on the asset had not increased EERRK - BIX
significantly since its initial recognition. EERRZEE
MiEERKREH
) R &

BEEM -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. EMNEBUBREEN(EFBUK

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HEA ) &

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs - (A) ERWAFTRETEBHER

EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued
B.

HEEA-B-F-NF-A-

AiEXN— &

HKFRS - 15 Revenue from Contracts with B.
Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 — Construction
Contracts and HKAS 18 — Revenue and related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a
five-steps model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised at the amount
that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method without practical
expedients. The adoption of HKFRS 15 does
not have a significant impact on when the
Group recognises revenue from sales of
products.

Amendments HKFRS 15 - Revenue from C.
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included
clarifications on identification of performance
obligations; application of principal versus
agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 D.
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time

Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS
1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, removing transition
provision exemptions relating to accounting
periods that had already passed and were
therefore no longer applicable.

The adoption of these amendments has no
impact on these financial statements as the
periods to which the transition provision
exemptions related have passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs -
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued

E.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-
2016 Cycle - Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-
urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures, clarifying that a Venture Capital
organisation’s permissible election to measure
its associates or joint ventures at fair value is
made separately for each associate or joint
venture.

The adoption of these amendments has no
impact on these financial statements as the
Group is not a venture capital organisation.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification
and Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on
the accounting for the effects of vesting and
non-vesting conditions on the measurement
of cash-settled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a
net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction
from cash-settled to equity-settled.

The adoption of these amendments has no
impact on these financial statements as
the Group does not have any cash-settled
share-based payment transaction and has no
share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs -
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2018 - continued

G.

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment
Property — Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to
or from investment properties there must be
a change in use and provides guidance on
making this determination. The clarification
states that a change of use will occur when
a property meets, or ceases to meet, the
definition of investment property and there
is supporting evidence that a change has
occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the
list of evidence in the standard as a non-
exhaustive list, thereby allowing for other
forms of evidence to support a transfer.

The adoption of these amendments has no
impact on these financial statements as the
clarified treatment is consistent with the
manner in which the Group has previously
assessed transfers.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on
determining the date of the transaction
for determining an exchange rate to use
for transactions that involve advance
consideration paid or received in a foreign
currency and the recognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability. The
Interpretations specifies that the date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income (or part
thereof) is the date on which the entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

The adoption of these amendments has no
impact on these financial statements as
the Group has not paid or received advance
consideration in a foreign currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

r & ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BSHBIERI « MAREZIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

(B)

2. EMBRMBBREEAN(EEBUHK

NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED (B)

BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group's current

intention is to apply these changes on the date they

become effective.

HKFRS 16

BB BHREERFE 165

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

EE(BABRMEREREZESD)
—BEE23%

Amendments to HKFRS 9

BBV BRE LR EIRAIERT

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

BEAUBBRELN_T—RFF
—E—tFREFEICE

A ) -

EEMERRER IR
BT B RN B R EER
AEE A EIERRA T 58

MEEARER B AL E AR EE
2B mERAE 2 FE
AR BREER c NEH
BRI RN EEERENE BE
RzE#g -

Leases'

HE"

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

FriS % B 12 o) e 5 1

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

BAmEZIRMETFE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes'

%;/E/ED /EE|J%12?EE}]{/HT Fﬁ— TR1

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date
will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis.
The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in
optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise
an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of

leases differently.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n e B R YR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - continued

(B)

NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED
BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12 Income Taxes, by providing guidance over
how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting
for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
The entity shall also assume the tax authority will
examine amounts that it has a right to examine and
have full knowledge of all related information when
making those examinations. If the entity determines
it is probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or
the "expected value” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are
met — instead of at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - continued

(B)

NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED
BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
- Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 12 which
clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends
are recognised consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profits, either in profit
or loss, other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’'s accounting policies and
financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKASs") and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the "HKFRS") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB"), which is same as the presentation currency
of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BSHBIERI « MAREZIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

4.2

4.3

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements
are present: power over the investee, exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

BEXEFHE

4.1

4.2

4.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

r & ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BSHBIERI « MAREZIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.3

REVENUE RECOGNITION - continued

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or
service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.3 REVENUE RECOGNITION - continued

(i)

(ii)

Seafood and algae product

Customers obtain control of the seafood and
algae products when the goods are delivered
to and have been accepted. Revenue is
thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the seafood and algae products.
There is generally only one performance
obligation. Invoices are usually payable within
30 - 90 days. In the comparative period,
revenue from sales of goods is recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which was taken as at the time of delivery and
the title is passed to customer.

Other income

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis
on the principal outstanding at the applicable
interest rate.

Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract when those costs
meet all of the following criteria:

(a) the costs relate directly to a contract or
to an anticipated contract that the entity
can specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources
of the entity that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered,
The asset recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic
basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services
to which the cost relate. The asset is
subject to impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BSHBIERI « MAREZIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.4

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment including electric equipment,
plant and machinery, motor vehicles, furniture
and equipment and leasehold improvement in the
production or supply of goods, or for administrative
purposes, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off their costs net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are
as follows:

Electric equipment 3 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture and equipment b years
Leasehold improvement b years

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’'s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised
in profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.5

4.6

4.7

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER THAN FINANCIAL
ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

o Plant and equipment; and
o Prepaid lease payments
° Inventories

EXSTHE-&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BSHBIERI « MAREZIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.7

4.8

4.9

IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER THAN FINANCIAL
ASSETS - continued

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use)
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

RESEARCH EXPENDITURE
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued. Any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares are deducted from share
premium (net of any related income tax benefit) to the
extent they are incremental costs directly attributable
to the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
411.A. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED FROM 1 JANUARY 2018)

(a)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’'s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BSHBIERI « MAREZIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.11.A. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED FROM 1 JANUARY 2018) -
continued

(a)

Financial assets — continued

Debt instruments — continued

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI"): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through OCI. Debt investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income
are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income calculated using the effective
interest rate method, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"):
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified
at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described
above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
411.A. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED FROM 1 JANUARY 2018) -
continued

(a)

(b)

Financial assets — continued

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment
basis. Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value. Dividend income are recognised
in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or
loss. All other equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) on trade
receivables, financial assets measured
at amortised cost and debt investments
measured at FVOCI. The ECLs are measured
on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.11.A. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED FROM 1 JANUARY 2018) -
continued

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets —
continued

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and deposits
paid to suppliers using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
411.A. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED FROM 1 JANUARY 2018) -
continued

(c)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or
it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 4.

411.A. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED FROM 1 JANUARY 2018) -

continued

(c) Financial liabilities — continued

EXSTHE-&

4NMAERIE(BE=ZE—NE—A—
HitERMERHE) &

(c)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss if the following criteria are met:
(i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a
group of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
liability contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for the gains and
losses arising from the Group's own credit risk
which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification
to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, borrowings, certain
preference shares and the debt element of
convertible loan note issued by the Group are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n e B R YR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
411.A. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED FROM 1 JANUARY 2018) -
continued

(d)

(e)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate,
a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622, came into operation on 3 March 2014.
Under the Ordinance shares of the Company
do not have a nominal value. Consideration
received or receivable for the issue of shares
on or after 3 March 2014 is credited to share
capital. Commissions and expenses are
allowed to be deducted from share capital
under s. 148 and s. 149 of the Ordinance.

4, EAXSHEE-&
ANMAESRIBE(BE=ZE—N\E—H—
HieFE MV ERTEER) — &

(d)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
411.A. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED FROM 1 JANUARY 2018) -
continued

(1)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished.
If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair
value of the financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability or part thereof extinguished
and the consideration paid is recognised in
profit or loss for the year.

BEAEHE-&
4NMAERIE(BE=ZE—NE—A—
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(f)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

411.B. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED UNTIL 31 DECEMBER 2017)
The group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information.
Accordingly, the comparative financial information
provided continues to be accounted for in accordance
with the group’s previous accounting policy.

(a)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired. Financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognized on
trade date basis. A regular way purchase or
sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise
principally through the provision of goods and
services to customers (trade receivables) and
also incorporate other types of contractual
monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised
cost using effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate and transaction cost.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.11.B. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED UNTIL 31 DECEMBER 2017) -
continued

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that financial asset is
impaired. Financial asset is impaired if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset and that
event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include:

° Significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

° A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

o It becoming probable that the debtor

will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

o Significant changes in the technological
market, economic or environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.

BEAEHE-&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
411.B. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED UNTIL 31 DECEMBER 2017) -
continued

(b)

(c)

Impairment loss on financial assets —
continued

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset'’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
bank borrowings, trade payables, other
payables and accruals and deposits received
and amount due to a director subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.11.B. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED UNTIL 31 DECEMBER 2017) -
continued

(d)

(e)

(1)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate,
a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished.
If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair
value of the financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability or part thereof extinguished
and the consideration paid is recognised in
profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BSHBIERI « MAREZIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.12 FOREIGN CURRENCY

4.13

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate(s)
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at the rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

INCOME TAXES
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowable for income tax purposes and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Except for goodwill and recognized assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate
to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.13

INCOME TAXES - continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognized directly in
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(a) Defined contribution retirement plan

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
PRC government, the Group participates in
a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government (the “Scheme”),
whereby the subsidiary of the Company in
the PRC is required to contribute a certain
percentage of the basic salaries of its
employees to the Scheme to fund their
retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing
and future retired employees of the subsidiary
of the Company. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the Scheme is to pay
the ongoing required contributions under the
Scheme. Contributions under the Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as incurred. There
are no provisions under the Scheme whereby
forfeited contributions may be used to reduce
future contributions.

EXRSTHE-&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R MEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BSHBIERI « MAREZIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4.14

4.15

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - continued

(b) Short-term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees
render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related
service.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported to
the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group's business
components and for their review of the performance
of those components. The business components
in the internal financial information reported to the
executive directors are determined following the
Group's major product lines.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
directors assess segment profit or loss by gross profit
or loss as measured in Financial Information.

For the purpose of presenting geographical location
of the Group’s revenue from external customers and
the Group’s non-current assets, country of domicile
is determined by reference to the country where the
majority of the Company’s subsidiaries operate.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

EXSTHE-&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.17 RELATED PARTIES
For the purposes of the Financial Information, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company'’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
4.17 RELATED PARTIES - continued
— continued

(b)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

DEPRECIATION

The Group depreciates the plant and equipment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 4.4.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets. The management
reassesses the estimated useful lives at the end of each of
the reporting date.

IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES

The management assesses impairment of receivables on a
regular basis. This estimate is based on the credit history of
the customers and debtors and current market conditions.
The management reassesses the impairment of receivables
at the end of each of the reporting date.

ESTIMATES OF CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for tax and the timing of payment of the
related tax. Where the final tax outcomes are different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
periods in which such determination are made.

BEREFHE R R A B

AEBREACERRABEE B
BEARESIEER MR R LR E
F - HAE S A A A 1T
-

AR BB A RRR - RS
FEHN R R R TS -
YT REENEERABERES
BAFENEAMBE G R A T3
W -

e

REBIRHI 4. 4PN 5 80 & 5T HUR R
FEREEINE - ErHERFHARRES
UAKEITEAEAZFEERIRR
BN e BB LA G  BEER
BERESPRERNF GG ERF
Hf o

FE W R ERE

BIEETE L RKRRBE - B
AEHRIBE R P REB AN E BN K
ZHTREL - EEENREHMSH
REF G EUGRIERIE

BB EARELER A MG

JRTE WA B 2 B8 K S AN AE R A TR ]
BREERHE - EREMBERA
RV TRTERE - ARAZHESY
1 R TE Y E D O P 1585 B A A TR 1
BRERREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer, net of expected goods of
returns, discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when performance obligation is
satisfied. The Group’s revenue is derived from selling goods
with revenue recognised at a point in time when control of
the goods has transferred to the customer. This is generally
when the goods are delivered to the customer.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group operates in one
business unit based on their products, and has one
reportable and operating segment: packaging and sales
of dried seafood, algae and fungi and seafood snacks.
The board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, reviews monthly sales reports to
determine the selling price of their products and monitors
the operating results of its business unit for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

No customer contributed 10% or more of the Group's
revenue during the year ended 31 December 2018. (2017:
Nil)

INFORMATION ABOUT GEOGRAPHICAL AREAS
The Group’s sales by geographical areas, based on the
delivery destination of the goods as requested by the
customers, were all domestic and within the PRC.

The Group’s non-current assets other than financial
instruments mainly represent plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments are located in the PRC.

WA Rz EBE R

YWes HENET PRI M A LIFTR] AR
RIE - BHEY@HR - FNREERE
MR FETE

WS BT B LB R - A EERY
Wik TR S TG - EMGER S B H
HEBEEPHER - B%ARNIN
REFE -

R IER

AEEMS  AREREEREE —E
EBEM B -—ERE2RRLED
M RENEEREER  BEEMN
HAERMEFAEER - ARRIES
S (AERRKEEARRE)BARMHHEE
BE UBTEHEMEEREREXK
BUMEEES  BUEHERERS
o R RIBFHERIRTE o

EBXEEFNEHR
BHE_Z2—N\F+-_A=+—HIF
B HMERFEEBAEERZMN10%
AL (ZE—+F: F) -

FREBENER
AEBREEP ERMERG IS D i
B ImE S EAHES RAMIHE &
RIPA AR B A o

FrEER R IENIIMIERDEEE
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

7.

OTHER INCOME

AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 7.

Hitp g AR e zs,(B8) - F

]
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREETT
Interest income on bank deposits RITHERF EHA 1,069 5D
Interest income on secured loan JEUE IR E FF B WA
receivables (Note 19(i)) (MFsE19()) 1,242 68
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment  HEME MREREIE (3) -
Rental income He WA 55 54
Exchange loss TE i &8 - (649)
Others Hih - 147
Total @t 2,363 195
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL 8. SHREENTAHNGEESE
ASSETS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FE—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETT
Impairment loss on trade receivables 2 5 W RIEN R EEE (67) =
Reversal of impairment loss on deposits X1 T EEHIZ S 8 REE
paid to suppliers gt qm) 145 =
Impairment loss on loan receivables BN E R EEE (150) -
Total ET (72) =
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging:

9. KRIEHRANER

BRETS R ADG M E MR T I& 1A -

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Auditors’ remuneration % SN EN & 914 934
Amortization of prepaid lease payments  TE[ 70 & 2B 5 50 50
Costs of sales (Note) SHERA (M aE) 498,864 480,901
Research expenditure L 789 554
Depreciation of plant and equipment B MR EITE 2,298 101
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 EBGRIE R BEEE 67 =
Reversal of Impairment loss on deposits S Pt EREHIZ S BRIE
paid to suppliers 1B E (145) -
Impairment loss on loan receivables FEWE SRR EEE 150 >
Operating lease rental in respect of: THEENREHEHES ¢
- Rented premises — AR 2,424 1,842
Listing expenses WX - 16,669
Staff costs (including directors’ BINA(BEEEHE
emoluments — Note 12) —KIzE12)
— Salaries and wages —HERIE 30,446 19,500
- Bonus —JE4T 182 9,515
- Retirement scheme contribution —RIRET BN 3,381 2,562

Note:

Cost of sales are mainly comprised of cost of inventories recognised

as expenses, which amounting to approximately RMB471,546,000
(2017: approximately RMB450,954,000).

R

o=

A o
&R ontt

BEBAT | —B—N\EERE

faE

HEXRAETEZRIERRAFAINTEK
NN R 471,546,000 ( —F —+
& Y9 AR#450,954,0007T) °
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

10.

FRSBLR X
FerEmBRERTORASREE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBT T
Current tax = EARIIE
Tax for the year FEERIA 27,384 33,516
Under-provision in respect of prior year BEFEBRETR 612 667
Deferred tax EEFIIR
Current year KEE 5 -
Total HEt 28,001 34,183

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT")
and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the Company's PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 was made based on the
estimated assessable profits calculated in accordance with
the relevant income tax laws, and regulations applicable to
the subsidiaries operated in the PRC.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable income arising in Hong Kong
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before income tax per the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as follows:

RIBC(PBEBEABRRI(EEMRSF
BOE) ) BB EABBUAE RG] -
ARBPEMERROBERS25% e

BHE2_Z—N\FrR-_F—+%+-HA
—T—HUEFEMTEDCEMSHEE
BEEZREARETFELENHB AR
BREAFGTED R EMESa bt
FERBURFIED ©

HRAEBEBE T \FR_T—+
Frt_A=T-HULEFEYEEEEH
BRERDOEN - AW EREFENEHR
TEL B -

FRHPIISTR S RS 2 E RS R
SIEER P SBLRE RIS BRIAT ¢

2018 2017

—E-N\F e

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETFTT

Profit before income tax KR BT 1S A& A 104,415 104,385
Tax thereon at domestic rates applicable  {&iEBAR B B EER A

to profit or loss in the jurisdictions B AR R E HFIIE

concerned 26,539 28,668

Under-provision in prior year BEFERETR 612 667
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TSR] BEARIE IR B B 2 &Y

for tax purposes Mg E 794 4,993

Deferred taxation IERERIE 5 -

Others Hi 51 (145)

Income tax expense for the year FRBHRAX 28,001 34,183

PREFABRMIZERER QA

TE-N\FERS
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11. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 11. SREXR#HBEF
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —B—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET ARETT
Profits g l!
Profit attributable to owners of the RAEN B AELRTF
Company 76,414 70,202
2018 2017
—E-N\F P LF
Number’000 Number’000
TR T
Number of shares RGO EE
Weighted average number of ordinary LB NEF 9 E B
shares (note) (M%) 1,000,000 864,375
Note: Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic earnings per i : BARAEEREBEE_Z-NFER_Z
share as the Group had no dilutive potential shares during the years —tF+ A=+ —HLEFEIETMA
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. BEHEERD  HEREERMNEZR

EARBFER -

FEAERMERARART | ZE—/\FERS
China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2018
103



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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12.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES

12. EBEFMRESME

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION =S|
Directors’ emoluments are as follows: BEEMHT
Allowances
and other  Retirement
benefits scheme Total
Fees Salaries Bonuses inkind contributions  emoluments
BERHA
ik Hé Tt ENER  BAGEMR EMe
Year ended 31 December 2018 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(25 \FT-A=T-BIFE AE®T R ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AEBTR
Executive directors: Hi1EE:
Mr. Liu Rongru xmiEs - 1,070 - - 9 1,079
Mr. Jiang Dehua BEEnE - 1,016 - - 9 1,025
Mr. Lin Jiangtang WIERE - 458 182 - 10 650
Mr. Cao Hongyu [ssitd - 196 - - - 196
Mr. Chak Chi Shing aryitid - 30 - - - 30
s 2,710 182 s 28 2,980
Independent non-executive directors: B EHTEE -
Mr. Huang Xingluan BEERE 87 - - = = 87
Mr. Liu Dajin ARERE 87 - - - - 87
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan L e 130 - - - - 130
304 - - - - 304
Total @5 304 2,770 182 = 2 3,284
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12.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 12. EEFHREEMES &
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES - continued
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION - continued EEHM-E
Allowances
and other Retirement
benefits scheme Total
Fees Salaries Bonuses inkind  contributions  emoluments
LY E
ik e TEA ENEN  RAGTEIER i
Year ended 31 December 2017 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE-B—tE+-A=+-AILERE ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  AR®TR  ARETR  ARETR
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Liu Rongru BlmiEs - 655 4,325 = 9 4,989
Mr. Jiang Dehua BEEft - 598 2,163 = 8 2,769
Mr. Lin Jiangtang WIZEE - 486 1,298 = 10 1,794
- 1,739 71,786 - 27 9,552
Independent non-executive directors: BV 3EHTES :
Mr. Huang Xingluan BEELE 43 - - _ _ 5
Mr. Liu Dajin N 43 - - _ _ 43
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan WEmat 65 - - - - 65
151 - - - - 151
Total @t 151 1,739 7,786 - 27 9,703

No director received any emoluments from Group as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017. No director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments for the years ended 31 December

2018 and 2017.

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are analysed as

B2 ZTZ—N\Fr-_ZT—+F+_-A
Z+—HLEFE  BEEERAEEYK
BUEI BN & 1E BB B IMAREE A
AEBBHRE  SERFERBAMNM
B-BE-Z-N\EFER_ZT—tF+=
A=Z+—HLFE  BEEEWESRR
EWRERIRT AN -

AluGEEHFAL
HE_Z2—N\Frk-_F—+tF+-HA
=t HEFEASERUZSHFAL

followed: BT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—LF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE ANEX
Directors E 3 3
Non-directors, the highest paid individual SE#IEEE AL 2 2
5 5)

R
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12.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES - continued

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS - continued
Details of the remuneration of the above non-directors, the
highest paid individual for the year ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 are as follows:

12.

ESFMREEMS - &

AfuBBmHAL &
tRABE—T - N\FER=F—tF+=
A=+ —HIEFENGERFIFESTAL
HFBFRIT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F T —tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARET T

Salaries and other emoluments FehEMmiNe 1,163 2,809
Retirement scheme contribution RORET IR 21 24
1,184 2,833

The number of the highest paid non-directors fell within the
following emolument band:

MENFATEIINKDEFHIFEZTAL
N &

2018 2017
—E-N\F —B—+F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A N
Nil to RMB1,000,000 == AR¥1,000,0007T 2 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR#1,000,001 T2
AR ®2,000,0007T = _
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR#2 000,001 0=
AR#3,000,0007T = 1
2 2

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any director or any
of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office. There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

HEAERMIERAR AR

BT N\Fr-_ZTE—+F+_A
ZT—HLEFE  AEEWMERERE
ER RN RSFH AT T — A EN
T EABBMAREBR S INALRE
BligmHEE) - SMERBFERAMNEE
BE-_T—N\Fr-_ZT—+F+_-A
=T HLEFE  BEEERELRE
MEWEEAI NS B9 HE -

o
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12. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 12. EEFHREEMES &
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES - continued
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS SREEEWE
Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior EfENESUINEREEEREN
management who are not directors were within the & F A TARA -

following bands:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AEL
Nil to RMB1,000,000 =T &= AR¥1,000,0007T 6 3
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR¥1,000,0010E
AR #2 000,0007T = -
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR#2,000,00170E
AR #3,000,0007T - 1
6 4
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13. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. BERXRE
Furniture
Electric ~ Plant and Motor and Leasehold
equipment  machinery vehicles  equipment improvement Total

Bk RERMS nE GERRE RENXEE @it
RVMB'00O ~ RMB'O00  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL  ARBTL ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Cost: R
As at 1 January 2017 W-E—+F-F—H 118 70 320 241 - 749
Additions NE 5 - 30 - - 35

Asat31 December2017and  R-E—+E+-A=+-Ak

1 January 2018 —“5-\#-A-H 123 70 350 24 - 784
Additions RE 7,036 24,769 - 3,879 1,400 37,084
Disposal e - - - (77) = (77)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1+-H 7,159 24,839 350 4,043 1,400 37,791

Accumulated depreciation: ~ BEHE:
As at 1 January 2017 RZZE—t&-A-H 99 28 236 190 - 553
Charge for the year ERiHE 8 6 67 20 = 101
Asat31December2017and  RZE—+&+-A=+-8RK

1 January 2018 ~“F-N\E-f-H 107 34 303 210 - 654
Charge for the year ERER 1,024 945 14 198 117 2,298
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - - - (74) - (74)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-\E+-A=1-H 1,131 979 317 334 17 2,878

Net book value: BREHE -
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+-A=+-H 6,028 23,860 33 3,709 1,283 34,913
As at 31 December 2017 WZE—+F+-A=1-H 16 36 47 31 - 130
The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated TR R R ETE B R R R
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives and BEAKAESEAN GHE BERTE -

after taking into account of their estimated residual values.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 14. FENHEERE
The Group's prepaid lease payments represented prepaid AEBWBENEEFRIBEEFREERNTE
operating lease payments for tidal flats in PRC. The lease MiEEHENK - BEZZT—N\FKZ
prepayments expensed in the profit or loss amounted to T—+tHF+ZA=+—HIFE  RE
approximately RMB50,000 for the years ended 31 December HFIIERYMEEENRIBENAAR
2018 and 2017. #50,0007T °
DEPOSITS PAID TO SUPPLIERS 15. X FHEZzZES
The balance represents the earnest money paid to the ERIES N T REMESRERMEHH
fishermen for securing their long term supply of the raw EHHES BHARSABERESR
materials. The deposits are unsecured, interest-free and B MERARE D IERIR 2 S]IEK
the balances were subject to a repayable on demand clause BNEF(EE -
once the contracts are being terminated.
PREPAYMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF PLANT AND 16. BERERZENWENLRE
EQUIPMENT \ _ .
The balance represents prepayments for leasehold EEMEHENRRENBERE k&
improvement and acquisition of equipment and machinery. RFERFRIA ©
INVENTORIES 17. #E
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T
Raw materials EM R 13,752 20,927
Finished goods RUEY Th 56,554 20,648
70,306 41,575

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of inventories
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value
amounted to approximately RMB70,306,000 (2017:
approximately RMB41,575,000). During the year, no
impairment losses has been recognised (2017: Nil).

RZFE—NF+_A=Z+—H &K
ANET B FEMERTOREEE
FEEEEAN ART0,306,0007T (=
T—+F : HARM41,575,0007T) °
FR TEBERTARESR(ZZ
—tE)o
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18.

TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. EZEWFIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T AREFIT
Trade receivables B 5 A 110,379 97,914
Less: impairment loss W REEE (437) =
109,942 97,914

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the
Group's trade receivables net of impairment provision is as

REZEAY  ARENEFEKEFR
(FNERIBAE B ) BRI DATIA TS

follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\f —T—tf
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
0 - 30 days 0%30H 73,329 68,384
31 - 60 days 31260H 34,245 28,168
61 - 90 days 61290H 2,368 1,362
109,942 97,914
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18.

TRADE RECEIVABLES - continued

The credit term granted by the Group to its trade customers
is normally 30 days to 90 days. The ageing analysis of the
Group's trade receivables that are neither individually nor

18.

BEZRWNRE &
AEEREESEPERENEER K
AHAB0E90H - REBWEMER K E
BE BT RERNE S BUGRIAN KRR D

collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: ranr -
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR¥ETTT
Neither past due nor impaired %) A B HA kR B 109,942 97,914
Past due for less than 3 months AELRN=1EA - -
109,942 97,914

The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

BHRMGRIERERENEESIT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —B—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—B®EEE = -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RNE B wEER

FORMTE 370 =

Carrying amount as at 1 January (restated) A — A —B&IEEME(EF)) 370 S

Impairment losses recognised BERRBEEE 67 -

Carrying amount as at 31 December R+-A=+t—HHEEE 437 =

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
receivables approximate their fair values.
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19.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

BE - BNRIERHE M ERRIE

RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETFT
Secured loan receivable — Note (i) JE U A IR E 2R — B () 7,532 12,604
Amount due from a related party — Note (i) F&UEEE 5 3218 — Wi 3T (i) 236 234
Others Hi 4,945 1,129
12,713 13,967

(ii)

The balance represents a loan receivable and accrued interest
income from the loan receivable. On 12 December 2017, the
Company has lent HK$15 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB12,975,000) to an independent third party at 10% interest per
annum for a two-month period. The Company has interest income
on the secured loan of HK$78,082 (equivalent to approximately
RMB67,541) for the year end 31 December 2017.

On 2 February 2018 and 26 March 2018, the secured loan has been
further extended and the balance has been settled on 28 March
2018.

On 6 April 2018, the Company has lent HK$15 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB12,048,450) to an independent third party at 10%
interest per annum for a three-month period.

On 4 July 2018, 11 October 2018 and 7 January 2019, the secured
loan has been further extended to June 2019. And the interest rate
increased to 12% per annum since 1 June 2018. Also, the balance
has been subsequently partly-settled on 14 March 2019 and 20
March 2019 of HK$2,291,000 and HK$2,709,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,938,000 and approximately RMB2,292,000
respectively).

At 31 December 2018, the gross principal and interest of loan
receivable are HK8,980,000 (equivalent to RMB7,869,000) and
HK142,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB124,000) respectively.
The Company has interest income on the secured loan of
HK$1,468,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,242,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

After the deduction of the ECL provided for loan receivables as at
31 December 2018 of RMB461,000, the net loan receivables is
approximately RMB7,532,000.

The balance represents a rental deposit and rental prepayment paid
to a company, which was controlled by the major shareholder’s
spouse. The balance was unsecured, interest-free, and will be
repayable upon the end of lease term.

(i)

(i)
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B 8 45 o T B W SR R B B SR FE T
MERAX RZZT—tHF+=ZA+=
B AARHREFRI10% WBYLE=FH
BHAHRELMAEESTEERDY
AR#¥12,975,0007T) - HEZT—+F
+ZA=+—BLEE AARFER
ERF B A A78,0828 L FEERL
AR#67,6417T) ©

R-ZE-—NE-_A-BAR-_T—NE=
A=Z+X8 BERAERCBLRME
BEENR-_TE-N\F=ZA=+/\HEE
8o

RZZ—N\FMEANA  KAREIREF)
E10%MBIE=HEHABH=BEAN
158 &HT(HBERLHARE12,048,450
JT) e

RZZT—-N\FELAMA - ZFE—N\F+
A+—BR=-Z—h&—AtH A&
HERCBERE-Z—NFE~A 7
EE-_Z-N\FRAA—BRBENEF
FE12% + B D 52,291,000 T K&
2,709,000 T (D RIEERHOARKE
1,938,0007T & 49 A R#2,292,0007T ) &
BR-_T-—NE=ZA+HEAR=Z—AN
F=ZA=1+RHBE-

R-ZE—N\FE+=-A=+—8 " EKE
RE AR & 425 & F 8 5 5l 48,980,000
BT (HEE R AR 7,869,0007T) &
142,000 7T (FHE R4 A R #124,000
L) HEZZE-—NF+ZA=+—8
WEFE - ARAAEREROF Sk
A %1,468,000 8 L (HHE R AR
1,242,0007%) °

MBE - NF+ZA=+—HBHrEK
EREHEEEEREARK461,0007T
% BREFFEAHARK7,532,000

JC °

BRARIER —HHEZRCREBZES
MARXNHWESRERESENK
B ZABBARER  RERARE
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20.

At 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents in
the amount of approximately RMB2,813,000 (2017:
approximately RMB2,641,000) and approximately
RMB231,440,000 (2017: approximately RMB282,602,000)
are denominated in HK$ and RMB respectively. The cash
and cash equivalent denominated in RMB are deposited in
the PRC in the ordinary course of business. RMB is not a
freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds out
of the PRC is subject to the relevant rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC

HERBEEEEY

RZZE—N\EFE+-_A=+—"H8 &85
HARBE2813,000(ZE—+F :
HANBRUE2641,0007T) R4 ANRK
231,440,000 (—E—+F : HAR
#282,602,00070) NI REEYH
BIAB TR AREE - EB B EKB
2o UARBIENESMREEE
YRR PR - AR IEA] B @B 5%
R E K5 E S IE R BIE N B
FE B4 2 4B RESNE & $I B AR R MR AR BT

government. FiPR
21. TRADE PAYABLES 21. EBZEMSFRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —B—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARBTT
Trade payables E 5 IR 39,910 61,056

The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
terms agreed with different suppliers, normally 30 days.
Based on the receipt of services and goods, which normally
coincided with the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the
Group's trade payables as at 31 December 2018 and 2017
are as follows:

B 5 RNFENEERR T ETEHE
BHENGRMERTE - —RSH
30H  RiF—AREARIE A MHER MR
HBRERZRKAH  ARER=_F—)N\
FRZE—tHF+-A=+—BNESH
FEN FRRREBE DA ¢

2018 2017

—E-N\EFE —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AR¥ET T

0 - 30 days 0Z308 39,910 61,056

The trade payables are short-term and hence the carrying
values of the Group's trade payables are considered a
reasonable approximate of fair value.

B HRNFIARE TR - R AEE
B HRNFIANREERR SR FER
BIIEUE -

22. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER 22. EHEAR BWRSREMESR
PAYABLES B
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Payable for acquisition of plant and EERE K& ED
equipment FETFRIE 1,790 =
Others HAith 5,481 3,602
7,271 3,602
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23.

24.

25.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 23. RIKEFGFE
The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of AEERFTEMNEE ATEBRTEEN
the state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated BHXREEENRENENKE - AEE
by the PRC government. The Group’'s PRC companies are MR EQ R BIREEHFOE TE DL
required to contribute certain percentage of their payroll to FERARE R T2 - IR EEER
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The MNEL - AEBEBBRIKEF TSI
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement — BRI EEL TR
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under
the schemes.
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 24, EEBIBEE
The deferred tax assets of RMB281,000 recognised in RZE—NF+ZA=+—8 " @K%
respect of the impairment loss of financial assets (including MRARFRERMEE(REEFEWRR
trade receivables, deposits paid to suppliers and loan B YN TFHERZIZS RERERR)
receivables) (note 2A(i)) in the statement of financial (MFsE2A0)) B EE B ERIELER 8
position as at 31 December 2018. The deferred tax assets of EEAR®281,000C c RZZE—N\F
RMB276,000 recognised upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 as —A—H  ERNEBEVBREEDE9
at 1 January 2018. SR ERIELEIEE E A KK276,000
T o
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to FR P71 AT B B A B ER B0 % 1) 4K 88 AT 4080
such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable TRFMEERE  EWERZE TN
that taxable profit will be available against the deductible R ZHERRECHERE
temporary difference can be utilised.
CAPITAL AND RESERVE 25. BANGHE
2018 2017
ZE-N\F Tt
Number Amount Number Amount
A Tt s -
Notes ‘000 RMB’000 '000 RMB'000
(i TR AR®TxR Th ARETT
Authorised: ETE ¢
As at 1 January n—A—H 10,000,000 87,412 3,800 322
Subdivision of share capital A (c) - - 34,200 -
Increase in share capital REXR1E
upon capitalisation AN AR (d) - - 9,962,000 87,090
As at 31 December Rt=A=+—8 10,000,000 87,412 10,000,000 87,412
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
As at 1 January ®—A—H 1,000,000 8,723 - -
Subdivision of shares [ aribaEiis (c) = = -
Issue of ordinary shares RERRERETER
upon capitalisation of BETEAR
shareholders’ loan (e) - - 200 2
Issue of ordinary shares RE A1 81T
upon capitalisation TR (f) - - 749,799 6,555
Issue of ordinary shares NI ER R 15217
upon placing of shares LA (9) - - 250,000 2,166
As at 31 December BR+=—A=+—H 1,000,000 8,723 1,000,000 8,723

PREFABRMIZERER QA
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25.

CAPITAL AND RESERVE - continued

(a)

(e)

(9)

The Company was incorporated on 8 January 2016 in the Cayman
Islands with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB321,636) divided into 3,800,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each. Upon incorporation, one share of par value HK$0.1
was allotted and issued fully-paid to a subscriber, which was then
transferred to a shareholder at par.

On 8 January 2016, 99 shares were allotted and issued all credited as
fully-paid to shareholders.

On 21 June 2017, each share of HK$0.1 was subdivided into 10
shares of HK$0.01 each. The number of authorized share capital has
been increased from 3,800,000 to 38,000,000 while the number of
issued and fully paid share capital has been increased from 100 to
1,000.

On 21 June 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$380,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB321,636) to HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB87,411,432) by the creation of 9,962,000,000 ordinary shares of
par value HK$0.01 each.

On 22 June 2017, 200,000 shares were allotted and issued all
credited as fully-paid to shareholders in consideration of the
capitalisation of loans in the amount of HK$22,807,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB19,940,474) owing by the shareholders. The sum
of HK$2,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,749) representing
the par value of the ordinary shares of the Company, were credited to
the Company's share capital. The remaining sum of HK$22,805,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB19,938,725) were credited to share
premium account.

Pursuant to written resolutions passed on 22 June 2017, conditional
upon the share premium account of the Company having sufficient
balance, or otherwise being credited by way of global offering, the
directors were authorised to allot and issue a total of 749,799,000
shares credited as fully paid at par by way of capitalisation of the
sum of HK$7,497,990 (equivalent to approximately RMB6,555,492)
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company.

On 18 July 2017, 250,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of
the Company were issued at a price of HK$0.66 by way of placing.
On the same date, the Company’s ordinary shares were listed on
the Stock Exchange. The proceeds of HK$2,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB2,166,075) representing the par value of the
ordinary shares of the Company, were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The remaining proceeds of HK$162,500,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB140,794,875), before issuing
expenses of approximately HK$18,458,529 (equivalent to
approximately RMB15,993,023), were credited to share premium
account.

The aggregate amounts of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company were approximately RMB96,029,000
(2017: approximately RMB98,308,000).

Hﬁ$&fﬁ1ﬁ - IIE

(a)

(e)
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26. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

26. ERABZHMBRRR

POSITION
2018 2017
—E-N\F —B—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
{hg=d AR®BTT ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment in subsidiary RSB RANKE 694 =
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 76 -
770 -
CURRENT ASSETS nBEE
Prepayment and other receivables TR 5RI8 F Ho At FE YRR 7,771 12,622
Amounts due from subsidiaries e R NGIE L] 105,183 104,386
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeFEY 2,744 2,571
115,698 119,579
CURRENT LIABILITIES pE =N
Accruals, deposits received and JEETER - Bl REAM
other payables FEFIA 1,263 1,052
Amounts due to subsidiaries EANERIENGIES 9,725 11,496
10,988 12,548
NET CURRENT ASSETS FmBEE 104,710 107,031
NET ASSETS FEE 105,480 107,031
CAPITAL AND RESERVE BEARRFEE
Share capital A% A 25 8,723 8,723
Reserves e 96,757 98,308
TOTAL EQUITY L R 105,480 107,031

On the behalf of the directors

Mr. Liu Rongru
Zlea k%
Director

EF

RERES

Mr. Jiang Dehua
BEERE

Director

EF
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27.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

27. RHIBARANEKRE

TREJHAERRE  EEXEEBH
EAFENMBABFE - KREHER
s - FisRRtD B E A

Place of
incorporation and Issued and fully % of ownership Principal
Name of subsidiary operation paid share capital interest activities
MEARAE MR RLE Y SRTRAZKRAK BERER TEER
2018 2017
Z¥-N\F T F

Xiamen Wofan Foodstuff The People's RMB91,066,872 Indirectly Indirectly  Packaging and
Company Limited Republic of China 100% 100% sale of seafood
(EFRE products
RmABRLRF)

EFTRERMERRAT I AREME AR91,066,8727t  BEREE REHE BEREESEED

100% 100%

Fujian Wofan Foodstuff ~ The People’s RMB10,000,000 Indirectly Indirectly ~ Packaging and
Company Limited Republic of China 100% 100% sale of seafood
(BEREARERM products
BRAF)

BREAXRERLEBRA HEARLNE AK#10,000,0007T MiEEs BERE BEKESEER

100% 100%

117
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. BEAERFXRS
(A) Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these financial (A) BZEMBEEREZEEESE
statements, during the year, the Group entered into Gh s RNER - AEEBEBER
the following transactions with related parties. EINATRS ©
Transaction amount Balance owed/(owing)
REEHE YN
Related party identity
and relationship Type of transaction 2018 2017 2018 2017
HELFOREE REER —E-N\E —T—+F —E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT AR¥Tn ARETR
Xiamen Yehong Foodstuffs Rental deposit
Company Limited* HE%ZS - - 36 36
(EFIELARABRAF),
A company, which was  Rental expense
controlled by the major - cost of sales
shareholder's spouse  FERT —#HEKA 119 19 119 119
EMEARMAERAF
—MHEZHEEMEE  Rental expenses
bk [ NG] - administrative
expenses
MERS —THRX 79 79 79 79
198 198 234 234
Mr. Liu Rongjian* Purchase - cost of sales
(B4 %), Cousin of (Note)
Mr. Liu Rongru R - HERA ()
AL E
BIRMEENERS 262 747 - (184)
Mr. Liu Rongzhong* Purchase - cost of sales
(I ) Cousin of (Note)
Mr. Liu Rongru B - HEMAR ()
BIBBREE
BRMEENERS 405 1,013 - (193)
* The English name is translated for identification purpose
only.
Note:  The directors confirm that the above purchase transactions BiEE : BERDRMIEESSIRES

are entered into with trading terms similar to those with
third parties.
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

(B)

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The remuneration of directors for the year are set out
below:

28. BAELXRZ-#&

(B) EEEBAEHMH

BEERAFEZFHEINWT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREFT

Short-term benefits GHARE A 3,256 9,676
Contribution to retirement EIRERIFH 2R

benefit scheme 28 27

Total e 3,284 9,703

The emoluments of senior management for the year
are set out below:

BREEBRAFEFMNOT

2018 2017

—E-N\EFE =+

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARET T

Short-term benefits HEIE A 1,416 2,949
Contribution to retirement R R B

benefit scheme 39 41

Total @t 1,455 2,990
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29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29. REHEHRE
THE GROUP AS LESSEE AEBEREBRA
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable PAEWE TR EE L EHL 2 KRR
operating leases in respect of rented premises are payable A RERERNZTET
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Within one year —FR 2,554 217
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_ERF(BRIEEEME) 4,656 -
7,210 217
The Group leases a number of premises under operating RNEBRBKEHOBE X5 -
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one (2017: one) SERNNS B —F (T —+4F
year. —4F) o
THE GROUP AS LESSOR AEBERHBAA
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 rental HE_S—+HER-_FE—N\EF+_A4
income were RMB54,000 and RMB55,000 respectively. =+—HItEE  r HeWASRAAR
#54,0007T 2 A R #55,0007T °
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted NAREHAKR  AEFHEBPLEIILES
with tenants for the following future minimum lease 4  UTARKREEREN :
payments:
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Within one year —FR 55 54
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_ERF(BPIEEEMTE) 86 143
141 197
30. COMMITMENTS 30. &g
The Group has no capital commitments as at 31 December RZE—+tFR=_FE—NF+=A

2017 and 2018.

HEAERMIERAR AR

=t—B AEEXLEEARE -
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31.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained profits, respectively.

The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital
and the risk associated with the capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new shares issue and share buy-back as well as
the issue of new debts or redemption of existing debt, if
necessary

Management regards total equity as capital. The amount
of capital as at 31 December 2017 and 2018 amounted
to approximately RMB370,977,000 and approximately
RMB447,004,000, respectively, which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected
capital expenditures and the projected strategic investment
opportunities.

TEAERMERAR AR

31.

EXEERERER

AEBEREERNURRAEENNE
BRAMBRBERE  RARERHBLER

KB EEHRIARERS MR DR -

AEENENGBEBBRESFR (AR
BeRREEEY) RARREE ANE
HERE(DRIBEEBITRA - FE R
REEH])

BRANAR - AR EENER - Af
B E BRI - BT KB
Bty - AR EITHEIRSE DR A EIR
(WEFE) UWFEHEBRBERERS -

EEEEREABEEAER BT
—+ER_T-NF+_A=+—8"
ERGFED BIHARES70,977,0007C
N NREEA47,004,0007T © BB
EEFEANEART MTEARERE RS
% REERSEHKEEE -

T /\FEHRE
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32.

33.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 32. RRENEsNEHEEREREE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY M=
The following table shows the carrying amount of financial TREVSMEENABENERERDE
assets and liabilities:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables ER R EWGIE
— Cash and cash equivalents —-BERREEEY 234,253 285,243
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 R EMmEWFIE 123,787 117,042
358,040 402,285
Financial liabilities =K
Amortised cost BESHA AR
- Trade and other payables —B S REMERNKIE 47,100 64,614
(A)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT MEASURED AT (A) YFRAFHEFENEHMIE
FAIR VALUE
Financial instruments not measured at fair value WIHEATFEFENERMTA
include bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, BRERETER BRekBeE
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables EY - - E5REMEKFIE -
and interest-bearing borrowings. B 5 & H A JE A FOB R AT B AE
”%‘f o
Due to their short term nature, the carrying value HEREUEBREE H £1T7F
of bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade R -BeBEeEEY -  BS
and other receivables, trade and other payables LEMERGE BSREM
approximates fair value. ERNFENERAEHEESS
BRAFEES -
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. FMBEREEBENRBEK

AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, bank balances and cash,
trade payables and other payables.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The directors of the Company manage and monitor
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

FEENTESRTABREE HEKR
B~ HEEOR - RITEHRERES
B 5 PRI R B A FE A FROR

ZETRTANFBEREMEARKE -
HZELMTAERNARBRENXE
- FERRERBESRER BN
ARR R R BRI T - Ao
RAESERLERZFER - LHERRE
BB M E e iE S R
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

(A)

(B)

INTEREST RATE RISK

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’'s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rate.

CREDIT RISK

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action are taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the directors of the Company review
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the credit risk of the
Group is significantly reduced.

The credit risk of the Group is concentrated on
trade receivables from the Group’s five largest
customers as at 31 December 2017 and 2018
amounting to approximately RMB37,516,000 and
approximately RMB43,817,000, respectively, and
accounted for approximately 38% and approximately
40% of the Group's total trade receivables. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company continuously monitor the level of exposure
by frequent review of the credit evaluation of the
financial condition and credit quality of its customers
to ensure that prompt actions will be taken to lower
exposure.

TEAERMERAR AR

33.

HBEBEEENRBE-&

(A)

(B)

=T\ IR

ARER
AR E B A R AR
BAMH  ARE@KAREY
R R BEAFAEDSHE
EHYE -

FERERE
RBEMR - AKERHQT
REEBITEEME N EBBEX
MBBRRNEXEERRBRKE
@ BRI RS S HE B
REMEENKREE

SEEREEERR - A2T
ExCRTERABREERE
RE - FEMZ N HEMERIE
o ARERRERETES N
BEMEE o WA ARARES
WREHE HRWFIARRE
HIRO A W@ 25 - AERB
THKREEBEHTED ﬂﬁ%
1Bt ARAESER

WQFPE/WEEZIK’E@E’M*EJ—L R o

—TE—t+FRZE-NEF

—A=+—8 KEBNE
%ﬂ@%$m$ @ﬁk%ﬁ
B E 5 eI R P=F PN
EMW5momm&mAE%
43,817,000 7T * H A& B E
S EWFRIBBEE R 4I38% K %)
40% - AR=REEERR
KABEFEBR P IEAR
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. HMERKREEENREE-&
AND POLICIES - continued
(B) CREDIT RISK - continued (B) EERK &
The Group measures loss allowances for trade AEBIKRERREMEE SRS
receivables and deposits paid to suppliers at an FEER= B & 18 (LAE IR %) 4R fE
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated FE)NSHEA=E FHENKE
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical MEEBEE BRAKENE
credit loss experience indicate different loss patterns S EEEEBSBRBRTENES
for different subsidiaries, the loss allowance based on ARANTRBEER - RiEa
past due status is further distinguished between the B EEREERAEET
Group's different subsidiaries. RNB AR EE—FEA -
The following table provides information about the TERREEBENR Z-_Z—N\EF
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade +-A=1+—BAXREHEEZERE
receivables and deposits paid to suppliers as at 31 % 8 B F1E 5 e Uk 208 M A
December 2018: FTHERANESHBEHEES
BHER
(i) Trade receivables (i) =
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate (%) amount allowance
FEHA
B8 2 (%) RAREE EiERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTT ARBT T
0-30 days past due #HI0ZE30H 0.19% 73,467 (138)
31-60 days past due BHI31E60H 0.75% 34,504 (259)
61-90 days past due BHI61Z90H  1.68% 2,408 (40)
110,379 (437)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss TEHEIERRBBASFNEREIEL
experience over the past 5 years. These rates are BT E o L RS TR A R R U & FF
adjusted to reflect differences between economic SP SR HAR MV ASE AR © B BIAR S B A
conditions during the period over which the historic EEYERREESHESRSERINE
data has been collected, current conditions and EZEIHER o
the group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.
At 31 December 2017, the ageing analysis of trade R-E—+F+-A=+—H K&EH
debtors that were not considered to be impaired was R A2 RENE 5 EWIERNERR
as follows: DT
2017
—EF—tF
RMB'000
ARBT T
0-30 days past due #H0ZE30H 68,384
31-60 days past due #HEI31260H 28,168
61-90 days past due #HI61 290 H 1,362
97,914
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES - continued

33. UHEREEENRBEX-&

(B)

CREDIT RISK - continued (B) fFERE-&
Receivables that were past due but not impaired I 48 (B A d80 BR B N SR IR B %
related to a number of independent customers that EHEAEETELERTNE
had a good track record with the group. Based on NEFPEH o BEBERBTLR
past experience, management believed that no EEEMRE AR EEREY
impairment allowance was necessary in respect EEREE MARADA2E
of these balances as there had been no significant HERZEES  AtEAR
change in credit quality and the balances were still ZEERET IR E R -
considered fully recoverable.
(ii)  Deposits paid to suppliers (i) ZAHFHREFNEZE
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate (%) amount allowance
FEHA
BB (%) HMEREE EBERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFIT ARBT T
2 — 4 years to maturity BERIHI2ZAF  6.4% 6,000 (384)

Expected loss rates are based on the number
of years to maturity. These rates are adjusted

RHERERERINBNFHAE - %
5 H 2 A R BE DA 2 R M 52 R St B4R AT

to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the group's view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the
deposits paid to suppliers.

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of trade receivables, loan receivables

RYREAR ~ B BRI B AC R [ 8 37 A+
THERNZEARFREBERRNE
EZEER -

FARE ZEWFIE - BRERRZN
THERNIZSTIRNVEIEREREY

and deposits paid to suppliers during the year M
is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBET T
Balance as at 31 December RIEE B2 ERIFE395R
under HKAS 39 m+—A=+—H&&% - -
Impact of initial application of  ¥J#A & 3 & /& B 75 5 &5 )|
HKFRS 9 (note 2A(A)) FIRTE (HT2AA)) 1,210 -
Adjusted balance as at 1 January R — A — H8IEHREEH 1,210 =
Amounts written off FAMER 258
during the year (145) -
Impairment losses recognised  FRNIERHBIE 2
during the year 217 -
Balance as at 31 December R+ A=+—H®%E% 1,282 =

FEAERMERARART | ZE—/\FERS
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33.

(C)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. UIKEREEENRBK-E&
AND POLICIES - continued
LIQUIDITY RISK (C) RBESER
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management AABEERERNELER
rests with the directors of the Company, which EENERET BRECEY
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management BEANTRBHESEREEIE
framework for the management of the Group's 2 BEEAEBRMNES  F
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity HERBESURRHESE
management requirements. The Group manages BHTE ANEELEZRHORE
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and BERIETRE  UnRBHELAE
banking facilities. B o
The following table details the Group's remaining TRFNAEEFTESRE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BEORGADBEHE - ZXB
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on BREERREAWERERY
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities BRNEemBERMBRESRE
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be RE BREINBEREASRESR
required to pay. The table includes both interest and BomHERERFHAEM
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows s AMBEERIRERR
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived B E B R E -
from current interest rate at the end of each reporting
period.
2018 —E-N\F
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand
BHRRER AR—FR
FEE HeRE#E JREREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Non-derivatives: FTETHR
Trade payables B SRR 39,910 39,910 39,910
Accruals, deposits received fEs TR - BldRS
and other payables R E o fE R 5RIR 7,21 7,271 7,271
47,181 47,181 47,181
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33.

34.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued

33. MKEBREEANRBEX-E&

(C) LIQUIDITY RISK - continued (C) REBELEK-E&
2017 —E-+tF
Total
contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand
BHIRENR BR—FR
REE Ren2es HEEBREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Non-derivatives: FTETA
Trade payables B S REA5E 61,056 61,056 61,056
Accruals, deposits received FERT SR - BEWiES
and other payables N E A e P E 3,558 3,658 3,658
64,614 64,614 64,614
(D) CURRENCY RISK (D) E¥E

The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most
of the transactions settled in RMB and did not have
significant exposure to risk resulting from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March
2019.

AEBEIENTEEE K%
BRXGUARBEE - AXE
b FSMNE [E R B M E
RER -

34. HEGZEMIEHREK
RAEMBRERAESEN _E—NLF=

A=+
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hEMBRE
A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity of the HRNEBZFIFAREAFBEEZEEHEE A&
Group for the last five financial years is depicted below: REZBEY|RET -
RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-0\F ZB—t& ZF-RF ZE-hF ZTMm4F
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARE®ETRE ARETH ARETR
Revenue 'ON 667,958 644,407 468,039 366,968 204,847
Cost of sales HERN (498,864)  (480,901)  (349,642)  (272,862)  (156,944)
Gross profit EA 169,094 163,506 118,397 94,106 47,903
Other income and other gains Hip A RE bl 2,363 195 435 411 (157)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDEER (54,575)  (23,806)  (17,838)  (14,547) (8,536)
Administrative expenses THER (11,553)  (34,912)  (14,039) (2,707) (1,851)
Expected credit losses on financial assets ¢ B AENTEHEEER (72) - - - -
Other expenses HioBH (842) (598) (1,320) (1,012) (274)
Finance costs BERA - - (219) (1,028) (1,313)
Profit before income tax BRASB AR 104,415 104,385 85,416 75,223 35,772
Income tax expense FEHAY (28,001)  (34,183)  (24,264)  (19,379) (9,031)
Profit for the year attributable to AAREEAEEERER
owners of the Company 76,414 70,202 61,152 55,844 26,471
Other comprehensive income Htt2EKA
Items that may be classified subsequently ~ B A EH #8157
to profit or loss: HIBER -
- Exchange differences arising from - BEBIINEBEEN
translation of foreign operations EREE 547 (1,719) (804) - -
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ ERE M2 EUKA 547 (1,719) (804) = =
Profit and total comprehensive income  AAREEAEEEREFR
for the year attributable to ZHEARE
owners of the Company 76,961 68,483 60,348 55,844 26,471
Earnings per share SREF
- basic and diluted (RMB) -EAREE(ARE) 0.0764 0.0812 0.0815 0.0745 0.0353
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE  BERES
As at 31 December
B+=A=1+—-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
SR\ ZR—kF ZE-RF ZE-RF ZT-mE
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Total Assets EEAE 503,103 444,958 222,630 156,967 131,625
Total Liabilities vk 56,099 73,981 67,044 55,929 66,431
Total Equity EniEsE 447,004 370,977 155586 101,038 65,194

PREFABRMIZERER QA

128

—T-\EERE
China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2018



i

China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited
FEABSERERERQ A



	COVER

	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /CPo-Bold
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /MBei-Bold
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 300
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier (JC200103)
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName (http://www.color.org)
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 6.000950
      /MarksWeight 0.250000
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /UseName
      /PageMarksFile /RomanDefault
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




